
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
May 7, 2015 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Richard Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Victoria Wikle 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
   
Board Members Absent: (None.) 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Mike Janet, Coastland Engineering 
      Jessica Long, Coastland Engineering 
      James Piazza, Piazza Construction 
      Glenn Berkheimer, IEDA 
      Joe Morer, Team Ghilotti 
      Glen Ghilotti, Team Ghilotti 
      Lucia Kasulis 
      Derek Rampone, Auditor (Moss Levy et al.) 
        (via telephone) 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Gaylord Schaap at 6:31 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 
p.m.) 


 
The General Manager announced that Items V-E (Res. 15-10, Revising Stage 1 Water Shortage 
Declaration) and V-F (FY 2014-15 3rd Quarter Actual Vs. Budgeted Expenditures report) could be 
deferred to the June meeting if necessary due to time constraints. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.) 
 
Director Schaap reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Wikle moved to approve 
the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the April 2, 2015 Regular Board Meeting 


 1







 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  (None.) 
 


 
 


 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.) 


 
None. 


 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
A. (6:35 p.m.) Public Hearing: Discussion/Action re Resolution 15-05, Adopting Water 


Rates for FY 2015-16 and Analysis of protests received.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Board questions ensued.  Public comment was made by Lucia 
Kasulis.  at 6:52 p.m., President Schaap opened the Public Hearing.  Public comment 
was made by Lucia Kasulis.  Discussion ensued.  At 7:55 p.m. President Schaap closed 
the Public Hearing.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve Resolution 15-05, Adopting 
Water Rates for FY 2015-16.  Director Holmer seconded.  Brief discussion ensued.  
Motion carried 5-0.   


 
B. (6:56 p.m.) Public Hearing: Discussion/Action re Resolution15-05, Adopting the FY 


2015-16 Operating and Capital Improvement Budget.  The GM provided an overview 
of this item.  Board questions and discussion ensued.  President Schaap opened the 
Public Hearing at 7:07 p.m.  There were no comments.  Director Schaap closed the 
Public Hearing at 7:07 p.m.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve Resolution 15-08, 
Adopting the FY 2015-16 Operating and Capital Improvement Budget.  Director Wikle 
seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  


 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (7:09 p.m.) 
 
At 7:09 p.m., Director Schaap announced the item for discussion in Closed Session.  At 7:10 p.m. 
the Board went into Closed Session.  At 7:55 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
actions on Closed Session items were announced: 
 
 A. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54957.6): 
  District negotiator:  Glenn Berkheimer 
  Employee Organization:  Stationary Engineers Local 39 
  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 


** At 7:56 p.m. the Board took a short break.  The meeting reconvened at 8 p.m. ** 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (con't.) 
 
C. (8 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 15-06, Accepting the Final Audit for the 


Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2014.  The GM and Auditor Derek Rampone of Moss, 
Levy, et al. (who participated via telephone) provided an overview of this item.  Board 
questions and discussion ensued.  Brief discussion ensued.  Director Holmer moved to 
adopt Resolution 15-06, Accepting the Final Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 
2014.  Director Wikle seconded.  Motion carried 5-0. 


 


 2







D. (8:17 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 15-09, Approving the Construction 
Project Budget and Awarding the Contract for the FY 2016 Capital Improvement 
Project.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board questions and discussion 
ensued.  Comments were made by Mike Janet, Coastland Engineering.  Public comment 
was made by Jessica Long, Coastland Engineering.  Public comment was made by Joe 
Morer, Team Ghilotti.  Public Comment was made by James Piazza, Piazza 
Construction.  Public comment was made by Glen Ghilotti, Team Ghilotti.  Further Board 
discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve Resolution 15-09, Awarding 
the Contract for the FY 2016 Capital Improvement Project to Piazza Construction in the 
Sum of $915,433, and Authorizing the General Manager Total Change Order Approval of 
$91,543 and Single Change Order Approval up to $25,000 and County of Sonoma Permit 
Fees of $17,861.  Director Wikle seconded.  Motion carried 5-0. 


 
E. (8:49 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 15-10, Revising Stage 1 Water 


Shortage Declaration.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board questions and 
discussion ensued.  Direction Robb-Wilder moved to approve Resolution 15-10, Revising 
Restrictions in the Stage 1 Water Shortage Program.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion 
carried 5-0.   


 
F. Discussion/Action re FY 2014-15 3rd Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted Operations and 


Capital Expenditures and County Balances.  This item was postponed to the June 
Board meeting. 


 
 


VII. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (9:18 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory Testing. 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Guerneville Rainfall 
5. 2016 CIP 
6. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
7. In-House Construction Projects 
8. ADA Water Rates 
9. Drought Outreach 
10. Gantt Chart 
 
Board questions ensued. 
 
 


VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(9:24 p.m.) 


 
Director Holmer commented that he would like to see a demonstration of the new leak detection 
equipment. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:25 p.m.) 
 
1. ADA policy 
2. Actual vs. Budgeted report 
3. Approval of the MOU 
 
 
 
 
 


 3







 4


 
 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 9:26 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.)*

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (con't.)

		VII. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (9:18 p.m.)

		VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(9:24 p.m.)



		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:25 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
June 4, 2015, Regular Meeting  


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the May 7, 2015 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 







 
D. Approval of Staff Recommendation re Resolution 15-12, Election of Directors to 


the SDRMA Board of Directors 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE 
 
A. Discussion/Action re Proposed Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Water Rate 


(Est. time: 20 min.) 
 
B.  Discussion/Action re Approval of Res. 15-11, Approving a Memorandum of 


Understanding with International Union of Operating Engineers Stationary Local 
39 and Authorizing the Board President to Sign Said Memorandum (Est. time 10 
min.) 


 
C. Discussion/Action re FY 2014-15 3rd Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted Operations and 


Capital Expenditures and County Balances (Est. time 20 min.)  
 
D. Discussion/Action re Review of 2016-2023 Capital Improvement Program (Est. 


time 15 min.) 
 


 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 
5 min.) 


 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 30 min.) 
 


A. Conference with Labor Negotiator pursuant to Section 54957.6 
 SSWD negotiator: Steve Mack 


Unrepresented positions: Field Manager, Administrative Assistant, Senior Crew 
Supervisors (2) 


 
 B.  Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957- Public Employee 


 Performance Evaluation 
 Title: General Manager 
 


 


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 


 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN















































SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2015 
  
SUBJECT: MEDICAL DISABILITY WATER RATES 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation by Staff on progress on looking at 
accommodations for medically disabled District customer water rates. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  small     
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Board has heard a presentation by Mr. Richard Skaff requesting that the Board 
have water rates that accommodate medically disabled District customers who need 
greater amounts of water because of their medical disability.  At the October 2014 
meeting the Board received a presentation by District legal counsel Robin Donoghue 
who stated her opinion that the Board has no responsibility under Federal law to 
provide for such rates.  In October General Manager Steve Mack met with Mr. Skaff and 
Director Gaylord Schaap to discuss this matter to see if some accommodation might be 
possible and the results of that discussion and following investigations were brought 
back to the Board for discussion in January.  At that meeting the Board directed staff to 
move forward with a medical disability water rate proposal.   
 
Staff have come up with an approach for a medical disability water rate.  Following are 
the key features of the proposal: 
 


 Applicants will use the attached application which is based on the application 
used by Marin Municipal Water District.   


 Applicant's physician will fill out page 2 of the application. 
 Applicant will meet with General Manager to determine amount of extra Tier 1 


water allowed for the disability. 
 Credit will be calculated once per year (January bills for Monte Rio cycle, 


February bills for Guerneville cycle) to determine credit (amount over Tier 1 use 
within disability credit amount).  This will happen regardless of when the 
customer applies for the credit.   


 
Key features of the Medically disabled water rate as proposed: 
 







Medical Disability Water Rates  2 
June 4, 2015 


 Applicant must have a single family residential account in his/her name. 
 Physician must verify to need for extra water. 
 Annual application. 
 District sets the amount of extra Tier 1 water upon review of the application. 


 
Questions still remaining: 
 


 Any Proposition 218 issues? Does this need noticing like other water rates?  What 
about cost of service issues raised by the San Juan Capistrano decision? 


 Should there be an upper limit to the amount?  50% of Tier 1? 
 Does the medically disabled needing extra water have to be the account holder?  


What about spouse, child, non-related person living in house of customer? 
 Verification of information?  Do we care about income tax status (5th bullet on 


first page)? 
 Do we need an annual application? This is a holdover from the MMWD form and 


may not be followed by them.   
 
 
 
 







 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


MEDICALLY DISABLED WATER RATE 
 


QUALIFYING CRITERIA 
 


To qualify for the Sweetwater Springs Water District Medically 
Disabled Water Rate Program, you must:  
 


 Establish your disability through doctor verification (form 
attached)  


 Install low-volume showerheads, ULF toilets and faucet 
washers in your home (these items may be available to the 
applicant at no cost);  


 Be a single family residential customer with a meter size no 
larger than 1";  


 Have the water service in your name (apartment complexes or 
mobile home parks with a master meter do not qualify); and  


 Not be claimed as a dependent on another person's income tax 
return. 


 
 
Please have your doctor complete the attached application and return 
it to Sweetwater Springs Water District, PO Box 48, Guerneville, CA 
95446.  Your application must include the signed certification from 
your doctor confirming your disability.  
 
Please direct all questions regarding this program to the District 
Office at (707) 869-4000. The District will notify you in writing as to 
whether or not you qualify for this program. Please allow 
approximately three weeks for your application to be processed.  
 
The District reserves the right to request additional information 
from an applicant at any time.  While eligibility is generally for a 
one-year period, participation in the program can be revoked if a 
recipient of the Medically Disabled Water Rate discount program 
does not meet and continue to meet all qualifying criteria. 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT     2 
MEDICALLY DISABLED WATER RATE APPLICATION  
 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT  REQUIRES  THAT THE 
APPLICANT’S PHYSICIAN,  WHO IS LICENSED TO PRACTICE MEDICINE IN THE STATE 
OF CALIFORNIA, COMPLETE THIS FORM. 
 
MEDICAL CONDITION:  
 
I certify that the medical condition and water needs of ________________________, 
                                                                                              (name of patient)  
 
who is a full-time resident at _____________________________, are as follows:  
     (address of patient) 
 
(One of the boxes below must be checked 


Condition is: 
[ ] Permanent.  
[ ] Temporary.  If temporary, anticipated recovery date: _________ 
 
In the space below please provide a written description of the applicant’s 
medical condition that requires the use an amount of water greater than the 
amount provided in District’s tier #1 amount (8 units (a unit is 100 cubic 
feet), approximately 750 gallons) per 2 months).  If you need more space, 
please provide the information on a separate page. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________Doctor's name (please print or type)  
 
 
________________________________________________Doctor’s State License # 
 
 
________________________________________________Doctor's signature 
 
_______________________________________Office address  


 
_______________________________________City, state, zip  
 
_______________________________________Office Telephone Number  
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT     3 
MEDICALLY DISABLED WATER RATE APPLICATION  
 
 
Application for Calendar Year 20___ 
 
The Medically Disabled Water Rate discount will result  in ______ additional Units 
(Hundred cubic feet) being billed at the Tier One base rate per two-month billing cycle.  
Discount will be applied as a credit on the January (Monte Rio Cycle) or February 
(Guerneville Cycle) water bills for the preceding year. 
 
SSWD Customer #:  Date: 


Customer Name: Phone: (    ) 


Address: 
 
 
 
      Street                                     City                              Zip 
 


 If you would like to provide more detail, please provide your signed 
statement on a separate page. 


.   
 





		Item V-A - Disrict Medical Disabaility Water Rates

		Item V-A.1 - Disrict Medical Disabaility Water Rate Ap Form






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : June 4, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 15-11 APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING (MOU) WITH INTERNATIONAL UNION OF OPERATING 
ENGINEERS, STATIONARY LOCAL 39   
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 15-11 which approves an MOU 
with the International Union of Operating Engineers, Stationary Local 39.     


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Approximately $200,000 for the full five years of the agreement. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
International Union of Operating Engineers, Stationary Local 39 (Union) represents 6 
District employees, including Maintenance Workers and Office Receptionists.  The 
current MOU with the Union expires on June 30, 2015.  District staff have been 
negotiating with Union representatives since February 2015 on revising the MOU.  
These negotiations have been completed with the following major changes: 
 


 The MOU runs through June 2020 (five years). 
 A salary schedule has been approved with a 7.25% increase in salaries for the 


2016 fiscal year, and 2% increases for the next four fiscal years (2017-2020). 
 District employees will pay the employee share of retirement (7%) as directed by 


State legislation.  
 New employees will have retirement benefits per the State legislations (2%@ 62 


formula).  Classic employees (those hired prior to January 1, 2013) will continue 
with the 2%@55 formula. 


 District contribution for healthcare benefits have a 10% increase in the first year 
and 5% in each following year.    


 The On-Call Shift Differential has been increased to $45 for weekdays; $60 for 
Fridays; and $75 for Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays effective July 1, 2015.  
The On-Call Shift Differential will increase $5 for each classification on July 1, 
2017 and July 1, 2019.  Office staff will receive $150 payments on those dates.   


 The Boot allowance is raised to $210 effective July 1, 2015 and will increase $5 
each year of the agreement. 


 Other changes to the MOU have been made that incorporate earlier agreed-upon 
side letters with the Union.   


 
The MOU was negotiated in good faith with District staff and a Union representative.   It 
is a five-year agreement that works well for the staff represented by the Union, staff 
not represented by the Union, and the District.  I recommend approval. 







RESOLUTION 15-11 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS 


WATER DISTRICT APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH 


INTERNATIONAL UNION OF OPERATING ENGINEERS, STATIONARY LOCAL 39 AND 


AUTHORIZING THE BOARD PRESIDENT TO SIGN SAID MEMORANDUM  
 


WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District (District and the International 
Union of Operating Engineers, Stationary Local 39 (Union) have had a longstanding 
representational relationship regarding District employees which relationship is 
reflected, in part, in the terms and conditions of the five-year Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) which expires on June 30, 2015; and  


 
WHEREAS, the District and Union have met and conferred in good faith and in 


accordance with Government Code Section 3500 on a proposed successor MOU which 
includes  a number of changes to the prior MOU; and  


 
WHEREAS, Union membership has ratified the new MOU, subject to its approval 


by the District Board of Directors; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors finds that approving the proposed 


successor MOU is in the best interest of the District, its customers and its employees.  
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that: 
 
The attached MOU with Attachment A, Salary Schedules, is hereby approved and the 
provisions of the new MOU shall be effective as of July 1, 2015. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the President of the Board of Directors is hereby 
authorized to sign the attached MOU. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the General Manager is authorized to take such 
actions as are necessary to implement the provisions of this resolution.      
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly 
and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on June 4, 
2015, by the following vote. 
 







Resolution 15-11. MOU with OE Local 39      2 
June 4, 2015 


 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Rich Holmer        
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Gaylord Schaap 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 







 
 
 
 


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 


Between 
 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 


And 
 


International Union of Operating Engineers, 
Stationary Local 39 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2020


 
 







 


i 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                   July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 
 


Table of Contents 
MOU 


Sweetwater Springs Water District and OE Local 39 
07/01/15 – 06/30/20 


 
 


Section 1.  PREAMBLE ............................................................................................................................................1 


Section 2.  RECOGNITION ......................................................................................................................................1 


Section 3.  UNION SECURITY ................................................................................................................................1 


Section 4.  UNION REPRESENTATIVES ..............................................................................................................3 


Section 5.  ACCESS TO WORK LOCATIONS .....................................................................................................3 


Section 6.  USE OF DISTRICT FACILITIES..........................................................................................................4 


Section 7.  BULLETIN BOARDS ............................................................................................................................4 


Section 8.  ADVANCE NOTICE...............................................................................................................................4 


Section 9.  NO DISCRIMINATION ..........................................................................................................................4 


Section 10.  AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA).............................................................................4 


Section 11.  HOURS OF WORK .............................................................................................................................5 


Section 12. OVERTIME ............................................................................................................................................5 


Section 13.  ON CALL - ON CALL DUTY/STANDBY .........................................................................................5 


Section 14.  CALL OUT PAY...................................................................................................................................6 


Section 15.  SALARIES ............................................................................................................................................6 


Section 16.  BENEFITS ............................................................................................................................................7 


A.  ELIGIBILITY FOR BENEFITS ........................................................................................................................7 


B.  MEDICAL INSURANCE and VISION INSURANCE....................................................................................7 


C.  DENTAL INSURANCE: ...................................................................................................................................8 


D.  RETIREMENT ..................................................................................................................................................8 


E.  HOLIDAYS ........................................................................................................................................................9 







 


ii 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                   July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 
 


F.  FLOATING HOLIDAYS....................................................................................................................................9 


G.  VACATION........................................................................................................................................................9 


H.  SICK LEAVE ...................................................................................................................................................10 


Section 17.  LEAVES OF ABSENCE ...................................................................................................................12 


Leave Without Pay ...............................................................................................................................................12 


Medical Insurance Contribution during Leave Without Pay............................................................................12 


Jury Duty................................................................................................................................................................12 


Military Leaves of Absence .................................................................................................................................12 


Maternity Leave ....................................................................................................................................................13 


Family Care Leave ...............................................................................................................................................13 


Time Off to Vote ...................................................................................................................................................13 


Family Bereavement Leave ................................................................................................................................13 


Section 18.  LAYOFF ..............................................................................................................................................13 


Section 19.  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ............................................................................................................13 


Initial Discussions.................................................................................................................................................13 


Referral to General Manager ..............................................................................................................................13 


Investigation ..........................................................................................................................................................14 


Arbitration ..............................................................................................................................................................14 


Authority of Arbitrator ...........................................................................................................................................14 


No Modifications to Memorandum of Understanding ......................................................................................14 


Pay Claim ..............................................................................................................................................................14 


Section 20.  DISCIPLINE........................................................................................................................................14 


Skelly Hearing.......................................................................................................................................................15 


Right to Appeal to the Board of Directors .........................................................................................................15 


Time and Manner of the Hearing .......................................................................................................................15 


Hearing Officer......................................................................................................................................................15 


Board of Directors ................................................................................................................................................16 


Section 21.  PROBATIONARY PERIOD..............................................................................................................16 


Section 22.  MISCELLANEOUS............................................................................................................................16 


A.  Certification Pay..............................................................................................................................................16 


B.  Payment for License ......................................................................................................................................17 


C.  Merit Increases ...............................................................................................................................................17 







 


iii 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                   July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 
 


D.  Employees Temporarily Assigned to a Higher Classification...................................................................17 


E.  Mileage Reimbursement................................................................................................................................17 


F.  Personnel Files ...............................................................................................................................................17 


G.  Catastrophic Leave Bank..............................................................................................................................18 


H.  Educational Assistance .................................................................................................................................19 


I.  Uniforms ............................................................................................................................................................19 


J.  Boot Allowance................................................................................................................................................19 


K.  Flushing Differential .......................................................................................................................................20 


Section 23.  NO STRIKE ........................................................................................................................................20 


Section 24.  SEPARABILITY .................................................................................................................................20 


Section 25.  SCOPE ................................................................................................................................................20 


Section 26.  PAST PRACTICES AND EXISTING MOU ....................................................................................20 


Section 27.  TERM OF AGREEMENT ..................................................................................................................21 


APPENDIX.................................................................................................................................................................22 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 


July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2020 
 


 
This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into by and between the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District, hereinafter the "District", and the International Union of Operating Engineers, Stationary Local 
No. 39, hereinafter the "Union". 
 
Section 1.  PREAMBLE 
 
International Union of Operation Engineers, Stationary Local No. 39, and representatives of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District have met and conferred in good faith regarding wages, hours and 
other terms and conditions of employment of employees classifications units listed in Section 2, have 
exchanged freely information, opinions and proposals and have endeavored to reach agreement on all 
matters relating to the employment conditions and Employer-Employee relations of such employees. 
 
This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into pursuant to the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act 
(Government Code Sections 3500-et seq.) and has been jointly prepared by the parties. 
 
Section 2.  RECOGNITION 
 
The District recognizes the Union as the exclusive bargaining agent for all employees working in the 
following classifications: 
 


Classifications  
Account Clerk/Receptionist I, II 
Maintenance Worker Trainee, I, II, III 
Water System Operator  
Senior Water System Operator 
 


The Union and its authorized representatives have the exclusive right to represent Bargaining Unit 
members on all matters within the scope of representation. 
 
Section 3.  UNION SECURITY 
 
Agency Shop/Fair Share Fee 
A. General 


1) As a condition of continued employment, all regular full-time employees, and all part-time 
(+1,040 hours per year) employees who are paid forty (40) or more hours salary during a 
bi-weekly pay period shall be a member of the Union (and pay dues to the Union) or pay an 
agency shop service fee to the Union in an amount determined as set forth in subsection 
(b) below. 


2) No employee shall be required to pay the service fee during the first sixty (60) calendar 
days of employment. 


3) The provisions of this Section shall remain in effect during the term of this Agreement and 
any mutually agreed upon extension of that term. 


4) The employee's earnings must be sufficient after other legal and required deductions are 
made to cover the amount of the dues or service fees.  When an employee is in a non-pay 
status for an entire pay period, no withholding will be made to cover the pay period from 
future earnings.  In the case of an employee who is in a non-pay status during only part of 
the pay period, and the salary is not sufficient to cover the full withholding, no deduction 


1 







 


2 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


shall be made.  In this connection, all other legal and required deductions (including health 
care deductions) have priority over Union dues and service fees. 


 
B. Service Fee 
The service fee required in subsection (a) shall be an amount not to exceed the Union’s uniformly-applied 
initiation fee, periodic dues and general assessments. In computing such amounts, the Union shall 
exclude expenditures for members only benefits and Union expenditures for political and ideological 
purposes unrelated to collective bargaining, contract administration and grievance adjustment. Any 
dispute as to the service fee or the amount thereof shall be directed solely to the Union, and the District 
shall not be a party to the dispute. 
 
C. Payroll Deduction 
Both the service fee and the Union dues shall be paid to the Union through payroll deductions.  
 
D.  Implementation.   
Not later than thirty days after approval of this Agency Shop provision, the District shall deliver to each 
employee, subject to this Memorandum of Understanding who is not also a member of the Union, a notice 
advising that the District has entered into an Agency Shop agreement with the Union and that all 
employees subject to the Memorandum of Understanding must either join the Union, pay a service fee to 
the Union, or execute a written declaration claiming a religious exemption from this requirement.  Such 
notice shall include a form for the employee's signature authorizing payroll deduction of Union dues or a 
service fee, or a charitable contribution equal to the service fee. 
 
The employee shall have 14 calendar days from the delivery of the authorization form, to fully execute the 
authorization of his/her choice and return said form to the District.  If the form is not completed properly 
and returned within 14 calendar days, the District shall commence and continue a payroll deduction of 
service fees from the regular biweekly pay warrants of such employee.   
 
Any employee hired by the District subject to this Memorandum of Understanding on or after the date of 
implementation of this Section shall be provided, through the employee's department or agency, with an 
authorization form listed above.  Said employee shall have five working days following the initial date of 
employment to fully execute the authorization form of his/her choice and return said form.  
 
If the form is not completed properly and returned within five working days, the District shall commence 
and continue a payroll deduction of service fees from the regular biweekly pay warrants of such 
employee.  The effective date of Union dues, service fee deductions, or charitable contribution for such 
employees shall be the beginning of the first pay period after 60 days of employment 
 
E. Religious Exemption   
Any employee of the District, subject to this MOU, who is a member of a bona fide religion, body or sect 
which is recognized by the National Labor Relations Board as historically holding a conscientious 
objection to joining or financially supporting an employee organization shall, upon presentation of 
verification of active membership in such religion, body or sect, be permitted to make a charitable 
contribution equal to the service fee in lieu of Union membership or service fee payment.  Declarations or 
applications for religious exemption and any other supporting documentation shall be forwarded to the 
Union within fifteen days of receipt by the District.  The Union shall have fifteen days after receipt of a 
request for religious exemption to challenge any exemption granted by the District.  If challenged, the 







 


3 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


deduction to charity shall commence, but shall be held in escrow pending resolution of the challenge.  
Charitable contributions shall be by regular payroll deduction only.  Deductions made pursuant to this 
section shall be made to the American Red Cross, United Way, Redwood Empire Food Bank, or 
Stewards of the Coast and Redwoods. 
 
F. Disclosure and Reporting 
The Union shall keep an adequate itemized record of its financial transactions and shall make available 
annually, to the District and to the employees covered by this Section within sixty (60) days after the end 
of its fiscal year, a detailed written financial report thereof in the form of a balance sheet and an operating 
statement, certified as to accuracy by its president and treasurer or corresponding principal officer, or by 
a certified public accountant.  The Union, if required to file financial reports under the Labor-Management 
Disclosure Act of 1959 covering employees governed by this Agreement, or if required to file financial 
reports under Section 3546.5 of the Government Code, shall instead provide the District with a copy of 
such financial reports. 
 
G. Hold Harmless 
The Union shall promptly refund to the District any amounts paid to the Union in error under this Section. 
 
The Union expressly agrees to indemnify and hold the District harmless from any and all claims, 
demands, costs (including any costs incurred by the District in defense of a lawsuit), expenses, damages 
or other monetary losses arising out of or in any way connected with any action or inaction of the District 
in the adoption or administration of this Section.  This hold harmless and indemnity agreement shall 
include but not be limited to employee legal actions of any sort or nature against the District based upon 
or related to this Section. Further, in the event that the District undertakes disciplinary action against an 
employee pursuant to this Section, this hold harmless and indemnity agreement shall cover all costs and 
expenses, including any costs incurred by the District in defense of a lawsuit. 
 
H. Change of Law 
In the event there is a change in the law whereby any provision hereof becomes invalid or if for any 
reason any provision of this Section is rendered unlawful by any published appellate court decision, this 
Section shall be forthwith deemed amended to comply with the change or decision in question. 
 
Section 4.  UNION REPRESENTATIVES 
 
District employees who are official representatives of the Union shall be given reasonable time off with 
pay to attend meetings with management representatives, or to be present at hearings where matters 
within the scope of representation or grievances are being considered.  The use of official time for this 
purpose shall be reasonable and shall not interfere with the performance of District services as 
determined by the District.  Such employee representatives shall request for excused absence to their 
respective supervisor, at least two (2) working days prior to the scheduled meeting whenever possible.  
Except by mutual agreement, the number of employees excused for such purposes shall not exceed two 
(2). 
 
Section 5.  ACCESS TO WORK LOCATIONS 
 
Reasonable access to employee work locations shall be allowed to the business representative for the 
purpose of processing grievances or contacting members of the Union concerning business within the 
scope of representation.  The business representative shall not enter any work location without the 
consent of the General Manager.  Access shall be restricted so as not to interfere with the normal 







 


4 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


operations of the department or with established safety or security requirements. 
 
Solicitation of membership and activities concerned with the internal management of the Union, such as 
collecting dues, holding membership meetings, campaigning for office, conducting elections and 
distributing literature, shall not be conducted during working hours. 
 
Section 6.  USE OF DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 
District employees or the Union or their representatives may, with the prior approval of the General 
Manager, be granted the use of District facilities for meetings of District employees provided space is 
available.  
 
The use of District equipment other than items normally used in the conduct of business meetings, such 
as desks, chairs, ashtrays and blackboards is strictly prohibited, the presence of such equipment in 
approved District facilities notwithstanding. 
 
Section 7.  BULLETIN BOARDS 
 
The Union may use bulletin boards designated by the District under the following conditions: 
 


1. All materials must be dated and must identify the Union that published them. 
 
2. Unless special arrangements are made, materials posted will be removed thirty-one (31) 


days after the publication date. 
 
3. The District reserves the right to determine where bulletin boards shall be placed. 
 
4. If the Union does not abide by these rules, it will forfeit its right to have materials posted on 


District bulletin boards. 
 
Section 8.  ADVANCE NOTICE 
 
Except in cases of emergency, reasonable advance written notice shall be given the Union of any 
ordinance, rule, resolution or regulation directly relating to matters within the scope of representation 
proposed to be adopted by the Board of Directors and the Union shall be given the opportunity to meet 
with the General Manager or the designated representative prior to adoption.  In cases of emergency 
when the Board of Directors determines that an ordinance, rule, resolution or regulation must be adopted 
immediately without prior notice or meeting with the Union, the District shall provide such notice and 
opportunity to meet at the earliest practical time following the adoption of such ordinance, rule, resolution 
or regulation. 
 
Section 9.  NO DISCRIMINATION 
 
There shall be no discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital status, or 
legitimate Union activities against any employee or applicant for employment by the Union or by the 
District or by anyone employed by the District, and to the extent prohibited by applicable state and federal 
law, there shall be no discrimination because of age.  There shall be no discrimination against any 
handicapped person solely because of such handicap unless that handicap prevents the person from 
meeting the minimum standards established.  The provisions of this Section are not subject to the 
Grievance/Arbitration procedure. 
 
Section 10.  AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) 
 
The District and the Union recognize that the District has an obligation under law to meet with individual 







 


5 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


employees who allege a need for reasonable accommodation in the workplace because of a disability. 
 
Section 11.  HOURS OF WORK 
 
The work week shall be Monday 7:30am through Monday 7:29am. 
 
District office hours are from 8:00 A.M. to 4:30 P.M., Monday through Friday.   
 
Field operation is from 7:30 A.M. to 4:00 P.M. Monday through Friday. 
 
The District retains the right to re-open this section by giving the Union written notice of the District’s 
intent to modify the work schedule and to provide the Union with an opportunity to meet and confer.  
Employees shall be provided with one-half (1/2) hour of non-compensated time for a lunch break.  The 
lunch period shall be from 12:00 P.M. to 12:30 P.M., unless a Supervisor approves an alternate time in 
advance. 


 
 Employees shall be entitled to a fifteen (15) minute break during each four (4) hour work period at a time 


designated by the General Manager.  Such break-time shall be considered paid time subject to 
restrictions established by the District.  Modification to the break period shall require the prior approval of 
a Supervisor.  Breaks not taken shall not accumulate and the employee shall forgo the missed break.  
Failure by an employee to get prior authorization for an alternate break time shall result in its loss by the 
employee. 
 


 Office Unit:  The General Manager may at his sole discretion and with the affected employee(s) 
concurrence authorize alternate work hours that may extend beyond regular hours.  Such alternate work 
hours may include but not be limited to, a 9/80 plan and/or seasonal working hours. 
 
Section 12. OVERTIME 
 
All employees who work more than eight (8) hours in one workday or more than forty (40) hours in one 
workweek will receive overtime pay computed as follows: 
 
A. Overtime compensated at the rate of one and one-half (1-1/2) times the employees regular rate of 


pay will be provided for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) in one work week, for the first four 
(4) hours in excess of eight (8) in any one workday, and for the first eight (8) hours on the seventh 
day of work in one (1) work week. 


 
B. Overtime at the rate of two (2) times the employee’s regular rate of pay will be provided for all 


hours worked in excess of twelve (12) in one work day, and for all hours worked in excess of eight 
(8) on the seventh day of work in one work week and any work scheduled on a holiday.  


 
C. Overtime will be computed on actual minutes worked adjusted to the nearest increment of fifteen 


(15) minutes.  
 
D. Holiday, Vacation Leave and hours that are actually worked are counted to determine an 


employee's overtime pay. 
 
E. Pre-authorization - no employee may work overtime without the express prior approval of his/her 


supervisor. 
 
Section 13.  ON CALL - ON CALL DUTY/STANDBY 
 
Scheduled on-call will be rotated among all operations staff.  When an employee is on-call he/she shall 
be provided a pager and cell phone, which will provide notification in the event of an emergency 







 


6 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


repair/maintenance work need.  The pager and cell phone shall be kept in the on-call employee's 
possession during the entire on-call period of time.  Notification of an emergency repair/maintenance 
work need may also be given verbally, in person or by telephone, by the General Manager, Field 
Manager, or Crew Supervisors. 
 
Effective July 1, 2015, operations employees scheduled for on-call duty will be paid Forty-Five Dollars 
($45.00) for each on-call weekday shift scheduled and Sixty Dollars ($60.00) for Friday and Seventy-Five 
Dollars ($75.00) for each Saturday, Sunday and holiday on-call shift scheduled. 
 
Effective July 1, 2017, operations employees scheduled for on-call duty will be paid Fifty Dollars ($50.00) 
for each on-call weekday shift scheduled and Sixty-five Dollars ($65.00) for Friday and Eighty Dollars 
($80.00) for each Saturday, Sunday and holiday on-call shift scheduled. 
 
Effective July 1, 2019, operations employees scheduled for on-call duty will be paid Fifty-Five Dollars 
($55.00) for each on-call weekday shift scheduled and Seventy Dollars ($70.00) for Friday and Eighty-
Five Dollars ($85.00) for each Saturday, Sunday and holiday on-call shift scheduled. 
 
When an employee is on-call he/she shall be free to utilize his/her time as desired, but must remain able 
to respond to an emergency situation within forty-five (45) minutes from the time said emergency call is 
received by them.  (On-call employees shall be subject to the provisions of the Drug Free Workplace 
policy during the time they are on-call). 
 
An on-call employee may trade with another operational employee as long as the General Manager, Field 
Manager, or Crew Supervisor is notified of the change prior to the commencement of the on-call duty 
shift. 
 
Section 14.  CALL OUT PAY 
 
When an employee is called to work during non-work hours, that employee shall receive a minimum of 
two hours of compensation for the first call out during the standby period.  A standby period is defined as 
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, Saturday or Sunday.  If the initial call exceeds two 
hours of work the employee will be compensated for all time worked, at the appropriate rate.  For each 
additional call during the standby period an employee will be compensated for all time worked, at the 
appropriate rate. 
 
When an employee is on-call and is called and handles the request/question/situation via the phone or 
electronically the employee will receive a minimum of 15 minutes of compensation or actual time worked, 
whichever is greater.   
 
When an employee responds to an emergency call, the employee will be paid at overtime rates for hours 
over eight (8) in a day or forty (40) hours in a week worked.   
 
Section 15.  SALARIES 


 
o Effective July 1, 2015 or on adoption of the MOU, whichever is later, all classifications 


covered by this MOU shall have their base hourly wage increased by 7.25%. 
o Effective July 1, 2016 all classifications covered by this MOU shall have their base hourly 


wage increased by 2.0% 
o Effective July 1, 2017 all classifications covered by this MOU shall have their base hourly 


wage increased by 2.0% 
o Effective July 1, 2018 all classifications covered by this MOU shall have their base hourly 


wage increased by 2.0 % 







 


7 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


o Effective July 1, 2019 all classifications covered by this MOU shall have their base hourly 
wage increased by 2.0% 
 


The Union may, by July 1, 2018, provide written notice to the District requesting to reopen the 
Memorandum of Understanding regarding salary, medical and term if the CPI (San 
Francisco/Oakland/San Jose) for the period exceeds 9.5%.  The period for comparison shall be April 
2015 to April 2016, April 2016 to April 2017, and April 2017 to April 2018.  The CPI index to use shall be 
the All Urban Consumers. 


 
The District shall provide the following lump sum payments.   


o Effective July 1, 2015, all non-field staff shall be provided a one-time lump sum payment of 
one hundred and fifty dollars ($150.00). 


o Effective July 1, 2017, all non-field staff shall be provided a one-time lump sum payment of 
one hundred and fifty dollars ($150.00). 


o Effective July 1, 2019, all non-field staff shall be provided a one-time lump sum payment of 
one hundred and fifty dollars ($150.00). 


 
Section 16.  BENEFITS 
 
A.   ELIGIBILITY FOR BENEFITS 
The District provides health, retirement and time off with pay benefits to regular full-time employees.  
These same benefits are provided on a pro-rated basis to permanent part-time employees who either 
work in excess of 1000 hours per fiscal year or whose regular work schedule is slated to be in excess of 
20 hours per week.  Temporary employees are not eligible for benefits. 
 
B.   MEDICAL INSURANCE and VISION INSURANCE 
Eligible employees may be enrolled in the District’s medical insurance program (thru PERS) and vision 
insurance program on the first day of the month after their hire date. 
 
The District offers a Cafeteria Plan to pay for PERS medical insurance and vision insurance premiums.  
The Cafeteria Plan provides a maximum District contribution for medical and vision insurance, which 
includes the Minimum Employer Contribution.   
 
Effective January 1, 2015 and each January 1 thereafter thru 2020, the District shall contribute the below 
listed maximum amount per month for each employee for the purchase of medical and vision insurance, 
and share the cost of excess medical premium as explained in the table below: 
 


Effective Date Employee 
Employee + 


1 
Employee + 
2 or more 


Jan. 1, 2015 $629 $1,232 $1,594 


Jan. 1, 2016 $692 $1,355 $1,753 


Jan. 1, 2017 $726 $1,423 $1,841 


Jan. 1, 2018 $763 $1,494 $1,933 


Jan. 1, 2019 $801 $1,569 $2,030 







 


8 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


Jan. 1, 2020 $841 $1,647 $2,131 


If the employee’s medical and vision insurance premiums 
combined exceed the District contribution, then the District and 
the employee shall each pay half of the excess premium cost 
with the employee paying their half through payroll deduction. 


 
An employee shall use any and all such Cafeteria Plan funds toward the cost of employer-provided PERS 
medical insurance and vision insurance for the employee and eligible dependents.  An employee may not 
use these funds for other reason. 
 
Share the Savings Program 
If an employee selects not to participle in the District Sponsored health insurance benefit, the District will 
provide the employee’s deferred compensation account, on a monthly basis, with an amount equal to fifty 
percent (50%) of the employee only benefit amount of the least expensive health insurance provider.  To 
be eligible to participate in the Share the Savings Program, the employee must demonstrate that he/she 
has acquired health insurance from another provider.  Such proof shall be provided on an annual basis by 
submitting a copy of the health insurance policy or currently valid health insurance card.  Notice of intent 
to cease participation in the program shall be according to PERS procedures. 
 
C.   DENTAL INSURANCE:   
All eligible employees may begin participating in the District's dental insurance plan starting the first day 
of the month following commencement of employment.  The premium cost for eligible employees and 
their dependents is paid by the District. 
 
D.   RETIREMENT 


Deferred Compensation 
All employees are eligible to participate in the District's deferred compensation plan.  This is an 
optional employee benefit, which the District does not contribute to.  Further information 
concerning the features and requirements of this plan can be obtained from the General Manager. 
 
PERS Retirement Benefit 
The District’s retirement formula for classic employees shall be the retirement formula commonly 
referred to as 2.0% @ 55, with the following amendments: 


o Final Compensation Average – 3 years 
o Sick Leave Credit at Retirement 


 
Classic employees will make the PERS employee contribution (7.0%).  A classic employee is an 
employee who was a public employee (with PERS retirement or a reciprocating agency) prior to 
January 1, 2013 and remains a public employee without a break in service of more than 6 months. 
 
The contract between the District and the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), for 
employees (new members to the system as defined by PERS) hired after December 31, 2012 
shall be modified to provide the following benefits: 


 Retirement Formula – 2.0% at 62 
 Final Compensation Average – 3 Years 







 


9 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


 The employee contribution shall be the same as a classic employee or in 
accordance with Government Code Section 7522.30 (generally 50% of the normal 
cost), whichever is greater. 


 
Retiree Medical Insurance 


 Employees who have retired with the District may be eligible to participate in the PERS Health 
Plan at his/her own expense and subject to such conditions established by PERS.  The District 
shall contribute the minimum amount required by PERS, defined as the Minimum Employer 
Contribution (MEC), on behalf of participating employees.  In 2015, the MEC is $122.00 per 
month. 


 
E.   HOLIDAYS 
The District provides eligible employees the following paid holidays each year: 
 


New Year's Day 
Martin Luther King, Jr. Birthday 
President's Day 
Memorial Day 
Independence Day 
Labor Day 
Veteran's Day 
Thanksgiving Day 
Friday after Thanksgiving Day 
Christmas Day 


 
For each recognized holiday, eligible employees will receive a day off with pay.   
In order to qualify to receive holiday pay an eligible employee must be in paid status (except for sick leave 
unless illness is verified by a physician’s excuse) for work scheduled the day prior to and after the 
holiday.  In addition, employees are not eligible for holiday benefits that accrue while on an unpaid leave 
of absence or during a disciplinary time off without pay. 
 
When a scheduled holiday falls on a Sunday, it will be observed on the following Monday.  When a 
scheduled holiday falls on a Saturday, it will be observed on the preceding Friday.  Holidays that occur 
during an employee's vacation will not be counted as vacation days. 
 
F.   FLOATING HOLIDAYS 
In addition to the above listed holidays, eligible employees are entitled to 16 floating holiday hours which 
may be predesignated by a majority vote of District staff.  If not predesignated, the use of floating holiday 
hours must be preapproved in the same manner as vacation hours.  If not used within the calendar year, 
the floating holiday hours are lost.   
 
G.   VACATION 
The District has established a vacation plan to provide eligible employees with a period of rest and 
relaxation without loss of pay or benefits. 
 


Eligibility 
Eligible employees begin accruing vacation benefits upon commencement of employment.  Any 
accrued vacation benefits may not be used until the employee has completed at least six (6) 
months of continuous service, measured from the date of commencement of employment.  
"Continuous service" means service that is uninterrupted by termination of employment and 
subsequent rehire by the District 
 







 


10 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


 
Accrual 
Eligible employees are entitled to vacation as follows: 
 
Commencement of employment through Fifth Year: 
     10/12 of one day for each 
     full month worked up to a 
     maximum of 10 days per year.  
 
Sixth year through Tenth Year:          
     15/12 of one day for each 
     full month worked up to a 
     maximum of 15 days per year 
 
Eleventh year and Thereafter: 20/12 of one day for each 
     full month worked up to a 
     maximum of 20 days per year. 
 
Maximum Accrual 
Vacation accruals may not exceed twice an employee’s current annual entitlement (for example, 
six (6) weeks for an employee with more than five (5) year of service).  Once this maximum is 
reached, all further accruals will cease. Vacation accruals will recommence after the employee has 
taken vacation and the accrued vacation has dropped below the two-year maximum. 
 
Vacation Use 
All vacation days shall be taken no later than the calendar year immediately following the year in 
which they accrue, unless prior supervisor approval is obtained. 
 
Approval 
All vacations must be approved in advance by the employee's supervisor. 
 
Scheduling Conflicts:  Each January, vacations may be scheduled according to seniority.  
Thereafter, scheduling of vacation will be done on a first come, first served basis at the discretion 
of the General Manager and should be scheduled at least one month in advance. 
 
Holidays 
A holiday that falls during a vacation period will be treated as a holiday and not as a day of 
vacation taken. 
 
Vacation Accrual During Leaves of Absence 
If an employee takes an unpaid leave of absence, they will not earn vacation during the leave.  
Vacation accrual will recommence when the employee returns to work. 
 
Accrued vacation must be taken in increments of at least one (1) hour. 
 


H.   SICK LEAVE 
Eligibility 
Eligible employees begin accruing sick leave benefits upon commencement of employment at the 
rate of one day for each full month worked up to a maximum of twelve (12) days sick leave per 
calendar year 
 
USE: 







 


11 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


1. Sick leave may be taken for personal illness or disability in the employee's immediate 
family.  "Immediate family" is defined as the employee's spouse, registered domestic 
partner, children or parents. 


 
2. Hours absent for medical and dental appointments will be treated as sick leave. 
 
3. The District retains the right to require verification from a licensed medical practitioner for 


any absence due to illness or disability, in accordance with the District’s Sick Leave 
Verification Policy.  In cases that the employee is off for more than three (3) days, 
verification from a licensed medical practitioner is mandatory to receive sick leave. 


 
Cashing Out Sick Leave 
The District provides a benefit that converts accrued sick leave balances at retirement to service 
credits.  This benefit increases an employee’s years of service when calculating an employee’s 
retirement benefit.  In addition to the PERS sick leave incentive, at the employee’s request, once 
per year, the District shall pay 50% of the value of any sick leave hours above 60 days.  No sick 
pay will be paid in lieu of sick leave to employees who terminate their employment with the District 
or who are terminated by the District. 
 
Maximum Sick Leave Accrual  
There shall be no sick leave accrual maximum.  
 
Register Domestic Partner Defined (Family Code, Section 297) 
(a) Domestic partners are two adults who have chosen to share one another’s lives in an 


intimate and committed relationship of mutual caring. 


(b) A domestic partnership shall be established in California when both persons file a 
Declaration of Domestic Partnership with the Secretary of State pursuant to this division, 
and , at the time of filing, all of the following requirements are met: 


(1) Both persons have a common residence. 


(2) Neither person is married to someone else or is a member of another domestic 
partnership with someone else that has not been terminated, dissolved, or adjudged 
a nullity. 


(3) The two persons are not related by blood in a way that would prevent them from 
being married to each other in this state. 


(4) Both persons are at least 18 years of age. 


(5) Either of the following: 


(A) Both persons are members of the same sex. 


(B) One or both of the persons meet the eligibility criteria under Title II of the 
Social Security Act as defined in 42 U.S.C. Section 402(a) for old-age 
insurance benefits or Title XVI of the Social Security Act as defined in 42 







 


12 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


U.S.C. Section 1381 for aged individuals.  Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this section, persons of opposite sexes may not constitute a 
domestic partnership unless one or both of the persons are over the age of 
62. 


(6) Both persons are capable of consenting to the domestic partnership. 


(c) “Have a common residence” means that both domestic partners share the same residence. 
 It is not necessary that the legal right to possess the common residence be in both of their 
names.  Two people may have a common residence if one or both have additional 
residences.  Domestic partners do not cease to have a common residence if one leaves the 
common residence but intends to return. 


Section 17.  LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
 
Leave Without Pay 
The General Manager may grant employees leave of absence without pay for a period not to exceed 
thirty (30) days.  No leave shall be granted except upon written request of the employee.  Such requests 
shall be submitted to the General Manager.  Such leaves shall normally be granted to permit the 
employee to engage in activities that will increase his or her value to the District upon return, or because 
of sickness, injury or personal hardship.  Employees may not be granted a leave of absence until all 
accrued vacation is taken.  Failure on the part of an employee on leave to report promptly at its expiration 
shall result in dismissal of the employee. Vacation and sick leave credits shall not accrue to an employee 
on leave of absence.  The decision of the General Manager on granting or refusing to grant a leave of 
absence or extension thereof shall be final and conclusive and shall not be subject to the grievance 
procedure of this memorandum of Understanding. 
 
Medical Insurance Contribution during Leave Without Pay 
In situations when an employee has exhausted all eligible leave (vacation or sick leave), the employee is 
not covered by FMLA, Workers’ Compensation or other appropriate Statute and the employee is on a 
leave without pay, the employee shall be required to contribute one-half of the monthly premium for 
health, dental and vision insurance prior to the District making its contribution. 
 
Jury Duty 
An employee summoned to jury duty shall inform the employee’s supervisor and, if required to serve, may 
be absent from duty with full pay up to five (5) days only for those hours required to serve or if attendance 
is required and verified by the court.  Telephone call-in status shall not qualify for jury duty 
reimbursement.  Jury duty pay shall only be applicable to verified time at the Courthouse, exclusive of 
travel time.  The employee shall provide a signed receipt from the Court Clerk for the time served.  Any 
jury fees accrued during the District’s paid time, excluding travel expenses, received by an employee 
shall be remitted to the District.  If the employee elects to retain the jury duty fees, the employee’s time off 
for jury duty is not compensable.  When appropriate, supervisors may request exemption of individual 
employees from jury duty when such service would entail undue hardship to the District. 
 
Military Leaves of Absence 
The provisions of the Military and Veterans Code of the State of California shall govern military leave of 
District employees. 







 


13 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


 
 
Maternity Leave 
Maternity Leave shall be subject to applicable federal and state laws. 
 
Family Care Leave 
Family care leave shall be applicable according to state and federal law. 
 
Time Off to Vote 
Employees who do not have sufficient time outside of their regular working hours to vote in a statewide 
election may request time off to vote.  If possible, employees should make their request at least two (2) 
days in advance of the election.  Up to two (2) hours of paid time off will be provided, at the beginning or 
end of the employee's regular shift whichever will allow the most free time for voting and the least time off 
work. 
 
Family Bereavement Leave 
Any employee who experiences a death in the immediate family is granted emergency paid leave of up to 
three (3) working days. Compensation will be paid at the employee's normal base rate of pay for the 
actual time lost.  "Immediate family" includes the children, parents, grandparents, brothers and sisters of 
the employee, and the employee's spouse or domestic partner.  If circumstances demand that additional 
time be taken, additional leave may be granted by the General Manager.  An employee's accrued 
vacation time may also be used for this purpose. 
 
Section 18.  LAYOFF 
 
The District may layoff an employee.  The classifications subject to layoff shall be determined by the 
District on the basis of the administrative needs of the District.  Within the classifications subject to layoff, 
the order of layoff shall be determined on the basis of seniority. Emergency and provisional employees in 
the classification(s) subject to layoff shall be laid off before other persons in the class are laid off. 
 
Fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the effective date of the layoff of an employee, the General Manager 
shall notify the employee of the layoff and a copy of the notice shall be placed in the employee's 
personnel file and a copy will be sent to the Union. 
 
An employee who is laid off shall not accrue or be eligible for any benefits, including, but not limited to, 
vacation, sick leave, holidays, medical, dental, life insurance, vision care and safety shoes, except as 
subject to COBRA requirements.  
 
Section 19.  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 
A grievance shall be defined as any dispute arising during the term of the Memorandum of Understanding 
which involves the interpretation or application of any provision of this Memorandum of Understanding 
during its term, excluding all ordinances, resolutions, rules and regulations, the subject of which is not 
specifically covered by the provisions of this Memorandum.  Such excluded ordinance, resolutions, rules 
and regulations shall not be subject to the Grievance Procedure. 
 
Initial Discussions 
Any employee who believes that he or she has a grievance may discuss his or her grievance with their 
supervisor. 
 
If the issue is not resolved, the procedures hereafter specified may be invoked. 
 
Referral to General Manager 







 


14 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


The grievant will notify the General Manager in writing within ten (10) working days after the event that 
gives rise to the grievance, that a grievance exists, and in such notification, state the particulars of the 
grievance, and if possible, the nature of the determination which is desired.  No grievance may be 
arbitrated which has not first been filed and investigated in pursuance of this Section.  A grievance which 
remains unresolved after it has been submitted in writing to the General Manager may be referred to 
Arbitration. 
 
Investigation 
The General Manager will date and log all Grievance Forms and provide an acknowledgment of receipt to 
the employee submitting the grievance stating that the grievance is under review.  All grievances will be 
reviewed within ten (10) working days of submission. 
 
The General Manager or his/her designee will investigate the allegations of the grievance by meeting 
separately with the employee filing the grievance and others who either are named in the grievance or 
who may have knowledge of the facts set forth therein. 
 
On completion of its investigation, the General Manager will report in writing the findings and conclusions 
to the employee who filed the grievance.  If the grievance is resolved to their satisfaction, the terms of the 
resolution will be recorded and signed by all parties affected by it and the General Manager.  
 
Arbitration 
If an employee is not satisfied with the decision of the General Manager, the grievant may, within ten (10) 
working days of the General Manager's decision, request that the grievance be referred to an impartial 
arbitrator who shall be designated by mutual agreement.  If such agreement is not reached within five (5) 
calendar days from the date of receipt of request to arbitrate, then the State Mediation and Conciliation 
Service of the State of California shall be requested to supply a list of seven (7) qualified and experienced 
arbitrators.  If the parties cannot agree on one of the seven to act as arbitrator, they shall strike names 
from the list of nominees alternately until the name of one nominee remains who shall thereupon become 
the arbitrator.  The first party to strike a name from the list shall be chosen by lot.  
 
The fees and expenses of the arbitrator and of a court reporter shall be shared equally by the grievant 
and the District.  Each party, however, shall bear the cost of its own presentation, including preparation 
and post hearing briefs, if any. 
 
Authority of Arbitrator 
No arbitrator shall entertain, hear, decide, or make recommendations on any dispute unless such dispute 
involves a position in a unit represented by the Union, and unless such dispute falls within the definition of 
a grievance as set forth in Section 23. 
 
No Modifications to Memorandum of Understanding 
Proposals to add to or to change this Memorandum of Understanding or written agreements or addenda 
supplementary hereto shall not be arbitrable and no proposal to modify, amend, or terminate this 
Memorandum of Understanding, nor any matter or subject arising out of or in connection with such 
proposal, may be referred to arbitration under this Section.  No arbitrator shall have the power to amend 
or modify this Memorandum of Understanding or written agreements or addenda supplementary hereto or 
to establish any new terms or conditions of employment. 
 
Pay Claim 
All complaints involving or concerning payment of compensation shall be filed in writing and no 
adjustments shall be retroactive for more than thirty (30) days from the date of filing. 
 
Section 20.  DISCIPLINE 
 







 


15 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


The District shall always have the right to discipline, demote, suspend, reduction in pay, and discharge 
employees for just cause, with the exception of probationary employees, who may be terminated with or 
without cause at the sole discretion of the District.   
 
Skelly Hearing 
In the case of dismissals, demotions, reductions in pay or suspensions without pay greater than three (3) 
days, as provided for in the law, the employee shall be offered a Skelly hearing pursuant to which the 
employee shall be furnished written notice containing the nature of the proposed action, the reasons 
therefore, and the right to address the charges, orally or in writing. This notice shall be furnished at least 
ten (10) calendar days prior to the proposed effective date of the action and a copy of such notice will be 
sent to the Union.  In the event of dismissal, after receiving notice but prior to the proposed effective date 
of dismissal, the employee may be retained in duty status, or suspended with pay at the discretion of the 
district.  If the employee fails to respond to the advance notice of the proposed action, then the action of 
the District shall be effective on the date specified for final action.  Should the employee respond orally or 
in writing, the Department Head shall consider any comments of the employee before making a final 
decision and within ten (10) calendar days, transmit to the employee a letter containing the decision.  The 
only exception to giving prior notice for dismissal or suspension without pay greater than three (3) days, 
as provided for in the law, is in an emergency where it is deemed necessary to remove the employee 
from his/her employment immediately for the safety of the public, the employee, or other District 
employees, provided a Skelly hearing is afforded at the earliest reasonable opportunity available and the 
disciplinary action is still appealable. 
 
Right to Appeal to the Board of Directors 
An employee has a right to appeal a disciplinary action involving a suspension without pay, demotion, a 
reduction in pay and/or a discharge to the District’s Board of Directors. 
 
If the employee wishes to appeal a suspension without pay, demotion, a reduction in pay or a dismissal, 
to the District’s Board of Directors, he/she shall transmit, in writing, the appeal to the General Manager 
within five (5) calendar days following the notice of the decision appealed, which notice shall either be 
mailed by personal service to the employee or by depositing the notice in the U.S. Mail, first-class, 
postage prepaid. 
 
Time and Manner of the Hearing 
An appeal filed with the General Manager shall be presented to the Board of Directors at its next regular 
meeting.  The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, appoint an Administrative Hearing Officer to 
conduct the hearing.  Such hearings shall be conducted in accordance with applicable Government Code 
provisions.  If the Board determines that the appeal shall be heard by a Hearing Officer, it shall set the 
matter for hearing within thirty (30) days after the appeal has been presented to it. 
 
Hearing Officer 
If the District’s Board of Directors selects to have a Hearing Officer hear the disciplinary appeal the 
District will request the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service to provide a list of seven (7) impartial 
persons to act as a Hearing Officer.  The parties shall meet within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of 
such list to select a Hearing Officer (this may be done by telephone).  If there is no mutual agreement on 
one of the listed Hearing Officers, then management and the Union will alternately strike a Hearing 
Officer’s name from the list of seven (7) and will then repeat this procedure.  The remaining person shall 
be the duly selected Hearing Officer.  The procedure to determine who strikes the first name will be 
determined by lot.  If either party refuses to participate in the selection process, the other party will make 
a selection of the Hearing Officer from the list. 
 
Upon conclusion of the hearing, the Hearing Officer will provide both the General Manager and the Union 
with copies of his/her opinion on the merits of the discipline and the evidence presented.  The Hearing 
Officer’s decision shall be an advisory opinion only, non-binding on either party.  The Hearing Officer’s 







 


16 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


fees and expenses shall be borne equally by the parties.  If either party requires a transcript, that party 
will bear the entire cost of such transcript. 
 
Board of Directors 
Any discipline which has not been resolved by the procedures hereinabove set forth may be referred by 
the Union to the Board of Directors within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the Hearing Officer’s 
advisory opinion for decision 
 
Section 21.  PROBATIONARY PERIOD 
 
All original and promotional appointments shall be subject to a probationary period of six (6) months.  The 
probationary period shall be regarded as a part of the testing process and shall be utilized for closely 
observing the employee’s work, for securing the most effective adjustment of a new employee to the 
employee’s position and for rejecting any probationary employee whose performance does not meet the 
required standards of work. 
 
During the probationary period, an employee may be rejected at any time by the General Manager, or 
where the authority has been delegated by the General Manager, the General Manager’s representative, 
without cause and without the right of appeal. 
 
The General Manager may extend the probationary period for an additional period not to exceed six (6) 
months. 
 
Section 22.  MISCELLANEOUS 
 
A.   Certification Pay   
Certification pay is covered by the District’s flexible staffing program as described below: 
 
For Maintenance Worker Trainee and Maintenance Worker I positions, a step increase (5%) and 
promotion to higher position (see examples) will be provided after an employee has received certification 
for both of the State of California’s Water Operator tests, Treatment and Distribution.  
 
For Maintenance Worker II positions, a step increase will be provided after an employee has received 
certification for the State of California’s Distribution III and the employee will be promoted to Maintenance 
Worker III.  
 
For Water System Operator positions, a promotion to Senior Water System Operator and step increase 
will be provided after an employee has received certification for both of the State of California’s Water 
Operator Distribution III and Treatment III combined. 
 
An employee working as a Maintenance Worker III who receives a Treatment Operator III certification will 
be provided a 2.5% premium and remain at the Maintenance Worker III position and at the same step 
level. 
 
Example # 1: 
A person working as a Maintenance Worker Trainee receives certification for Distribution Operator I. This 
person is not eligible for an increase yet.  Later on this person receives certification for Water Treatment 
Operator I.  The District will now provide the employee with a 5% step increase and promote this person 
to a Maintenance Worker I position, at whatever step is equivalent to a 5% increase.  
 







 


17 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


 
Example # 2 
A person working as a Maintenance Worker I receives certification for Water Treatment Operator II. This 
person is not eligible for an increase yet.  Later on this person receives certification for Distribution 
Operator II. The District will now provide the employee with a 5% step increase and promote this person 
to a Maintenance Worker II position, at whatever step is equivalent to a 5% increase.  Note: In examples 
#1 or #2 it doesn’t matter which test is passed first. It can be Distribution or Treatment.     
 
Example #3 
A person working as a Maintenance Worker II receives certification for Distribution Operator III. This 
person is now eligible for a promotional step increase.  The District will now provide the employee with a 
5% step increase and promote this person to a Maintenance Worker III position, at whatever step is 
equivalent to 5%.  
 
Example #4 
A person working as a Water System Operator receives certification for Distribution III and Water 
Treatment III. This person is now eligible for a promotional step increase.  The District will now promote 
the employee to a Senior Water System Operator with a 5 % wage increase.  
 
Example #5 
A person working as a Maintenance Worker III receives certification for Water Treatment III test.  The 
District will now provide the employee with a 2.5 % premium.   No position change happens; the 
employee remains a MW III.    
 
B.   Payment for License 
The District agrees to pay the cost of the State Department of Health licenses each year.  It is the 
employee's responsibility to make application to take the exams, which are given twice each year.  The 
District will reimburse the cost of taking the test whether or not the applicant passes and a receipt should 
be submitted with the request for reimbursement form.  The cost of travel, food and lodging outside of 
normal work hours associated with completing the test shall be at the sole expense of the employee. 
 
C.   Merit Increases 
Merit increases shall occur on employees Anniversary Date unless the Performance Evaluation is less 
than satisfactory and the employee has had notification that their performance was not meeting 
expectations.  Additionally, an employee improvement plan shall be developed including a designated 
reevaluation period. 
 
D.   Employees Temporarily Assigned to a Higher Classification 
Employees temporarily assigned by the General Manager or his/her designee in writing to a higher 
classification shall immediately receive five percent (5%) above the employee’s regular pay for all work 
performed in that capacity. 
 
E.   Mileage Reimbursement 
Employees will be compensated at the current accepted IRS rate for each mile that a personal vehicle is 
used in District business.  If District vehicles are available, personal vehicles shall not be used unless 
directed by the General Manager or his/her designee. 
 
F.   Personnel Files 
An employee or his or her representative, on presentation of written authorization from the employee shall 







 


18 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


have access to the employee’s personnel file on request.  The District shall furnish the employee copies 
of all performance evaluation reports and letters of reprimand or warning prior to placement of such 
documents into the employee’s personnel file.  The employee may be required to acknowledge the 
receipt of any document entered into his/her personnel file without prejudice to subsequent arguments 
concerning the contents of such documents. 
 
G.   Catastrophic Leave Bank 
The District agrees to establish a Catastrophic Leave Bank to assist employees who have exhausted 
accrued leave time due to a serious or catastrophic illness or injury to themselves or their parents, 
brother, sister, children, spouse or domestic partner.  The  
Time Bank will allow other employees to donate time to the affected employee so that he/she can remain 
in a paid status for a longer period of time, thus partially ameliorating their financial impact of the illness, 
injury or condition. 
 


Eligibility 
To be eligible for this benefit, the receiving employee must: 1) Be a regular full-time employee who 
has passed his/her initial District probationary period, 2) Have sustained a life threatening or 
debilitating illness, injury of condition which may require confirmation by a physician, 3) Have 
exhausted all accumulated paid leave including vacation, holiday, sick leave, and/or compensatory 
time off, 4) Be unable to return to work for at least thirty (30) days, and 5) Have applied for a 
Leave of Absence Without Pay for medical reasons. 
 
Benefits 
Accrued vacation and compensatory time off hours donated by other employees will be converted 
to sick leave and credited to the receiving employee’s sick leave time balance on an hour-for-hour 
basis and shall be paid at the rate of pay of the receiving employee.  For as long as the receiving 
employee remains in a paid status, seniority, and all other benefits will continue, with the exception 
of sick leave and vacation accrual.  The total leave credits received by an employee will not 
normally exceed three (3) months.  However, if approved by the General Manager, the total leave 
credits may be extended on a case-by-case basis. 
 
Guidelines For Donating Leave Credits To The Time Bank 
1. Accrued vacation leave and compensatory time off may be donated by any regular full-time 


employee who has completed his/her initial District probationary period. 
 
2. Time donated will be converted from vacation to sick leave hours and credited to the 


receiving employee’s sick leave balance on an hour-for-hour basis and shall be paid at the 
rate of pay of the receiving employee. 


 
3. The total amount of time donated to one employee by another employee shall not exceed 


forty (40) hours.  The total leave credits received by the employee shall not normally 
exceed three (3) months; however, if approved by the General Manager may approve an 
extension to six (6) months total time. 


 
4. Initial leave time donations must be a minimum of eight (8) hours and thereafter, in four (4) 


hour increments.  An employee cannot donate leave hours, which would reduce his/her 
vacation balance to less than forty (40) hours. 


 
5. The use of donated leave hours will be in consecutive one-shift increments (i.e., 8 hours for 


a full-time employee working five eight hour days/week). 
 
6. While an employee is on leave using donated leave hours, no vacation or sick leave hours 


will accrue. 







 


19 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


 
7. Under all circumstances, time donations received by the employee are forfeited once made. 


 In the event that the receiving employee does not use all transferred leave for the 
catastrophic illness/injury, any balance will remain with that employee until that employee’s 
separation from District service. 


 
8. Payment for unused sick leave at the time of termination of employment shall be in 


accordance with the District’s Policy and Procedure Manual and Memorandum of 
Understanding, if appropriate. 


 
9. In accordance with IRS Ruling 90-29, leave transferred under such arrangements will not 


be considered wages for the employee who surrenders the leave and will therefore not be 
included in gross income or subject to withholding.  An employee who donates leave incurs 
no deductible expense or loss either upon the donation or use by the recipient. 


 
H.   Educational Assistance 
Employees of the District are encouraged to pursue educational opportunities, which are related to their 
present work, which will prepare them for foreseeable future opportunities within the District, or which will 
prepare them for future career advancement. 
 
The District will reimburse full-time employees for approved courses of study on the following criteria: 
 


1. A refund of the entire cost of tuition and required class materials will be made if the 
employee received a grade of "C" or better for the class. 


 
2. No refund will be made to employees who receive a grade below "C" for the class. 
 
3. No reimbursement for mileage to and from class will be made. 


 
To be eligible for reimbursement of course costs, the employee must receive advance approval for the 
class from the General Manager.  Requests for reimbursement should be submitted in writing.  The 
employee will be notified of final approval, or the reasons for denial.  Those requests for reimbursement 
which are received after the class begins will be eligible for only one-half (1/2) of the usual 
reimbursement. 
 
Upon completion of the class, the employee is responsible for sending copies of the grade slip and 
expense receipts to the General Manager for reimbursement purposes. 
 
I.  Uniforms 
Uniforms will be provided and maintained for all field crew employees.  The District will continue its 
practice of providing eleven (11) tee shirts.  Employees will advise the District of the number of long or 
short sleeve tee shirts they would like. 
 
J.  Boot Allowance 
Effective July 1, 2015 or on adoption of the MOU, whichever is later, employees will be provided a boot 
allowance of Two Hundred and Ten Dollars ($210.00) to cover the cost of OSHA approved boots. 
Employees may submit receipts for reimbursement of the boot allowance.  The boot allowance will 
increase to the following amounts: 
o Effective July 1, 2016 the boot allowance will be increased to $215.00. 
o Effective July 1, 2017 the boot allowance will be increased to $220.00. 
o Effective July 1, 2018 the boot allowance will be increased to $225.00. 
o Effective July 1, 2019 the boot allowance will be increased to $230.00. 







 


20 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


 
K.   Flushing Differential 
Employees, who are assigned by the District to perform flushing duties, after normal business hours, shall 
be provided seven and one-half percent (7.5%) differential for all hours worked performing flushing duties 
after normal business hours.  
 
L.   Compensatory Time Off 
On request of Employee and approval by the General Manager, Employee may earn compensatory time 
in lieu of being paid for overtime worked.  Such compensatory time shall accrue at the rate at which it is 
earned (i.e., one and one half times each regular overtime (OT) hour or two times each double OT hour), 
or fraction thereof, of overtime worked.  Requests to use compensatory time shall be made the same 
manner as vacation use.  Employee may only accrue up to twenty-four (24) hours of compensatory time 
in any calendar year.  Compensatory time accrued but not used shall be paid off on or before December 
31 of each year. 
 
Section 23.  NO STRIKE 
 
During the term of this Memorandum of Understanding, the Union, its members and representatives 
agree that it and they will not engage in, authorize, sanction or support any strike, slowdown, refusal to 
perform customary duties or stoppage of work against the District. 
 
Section 24.  SEPARABILITY 
 
Should any provision of this Memorandum be declared illegal by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidation shall not invalidate the remaining portions thereof, which shall remain in full force and effect. 
In the event of such invalidation the parties agree to meet within thirty (30) days to negotiate a mutually 
acceptable replacement provision. 
 
Section 25.  SCOPE 
 
Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, this Memorandum of Understanding fully and completely 
incorporates the understanding of the parties hereto and constitutes the sole and entire agreement 
between the parties in any and all matters subject to meet and confer.  Neither party shall, during the 
term of this Memorandum of Understanding demand any change herein, provided that nothing herein 
shall prohibit the parties from changing the terms of this Memorandum of Understanding by mutual 
agreement. 
 
Section 26.  PAST PRACTICES AND EXISTING MOU 
 
Continuance of working conditions and practices not specifically authorized by ordinance or by resolution 
of the Board of Directors is not guaranteed by this Memorandum of Understanding. 
 
This Memorandum of Understanding shall supersede all existing Memoranda of Understanding between 
the District and the Union. 
 







 


21 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


Section 27.  TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 
This Memorandum of Understanding shall be presented by the Union to the employees to be covered 
hereby for ratification by said employees, and shall thereafter be presented to the Board of Directors as 
the joint recommendations of the undersigned for salary and employee benefit adjustments for the period 
commencing July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2020.  
 
In witness whereof, the parties hereto have executed this Memorandum of Understanding this            day 
of                                           , of 2015. 
 
 
INTERNATIONAL UNION OF OPERATING SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
ENGINEERS STATIONARY LOCAL NO. 39 WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
By _______________________________ By _______________________________ 
  
 
 
By _______________________________ By _______________________________ 
 
 
 
By _______________________________ 
 
 
 
By _______________________________ 
 
 
 
By _______________________________ 
 







 


22 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


 
APPENDIX 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Salary Schedule FY 2015-16 (7.25% increase) 


Effective the first pay period starting after July 1, 2015 
 


  Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 
Account Clerk/Receptionist 
I      
 Hourly 18.56 19.48 20.45 21.48 22.55
 Bi-weekly 1,484.45 1,558.38 1,636.35 1,718.59 1,804.04
 Monthly 3,216.30 3,376.48 3,545.42 3,723.62 3,908.76
 Annually 38,595.64 40,517.79 42,545.07 44,683.43 46,905.11
       
Account Clerk/Receptionist 
II      
 Hourly 21.48 22.52 23.64 24.82 26.05
 Bi-weekly 1,718.61 1,801.24 1,891.19 1,985.70 2,083.82
 Monthly 3,723.67 3,902.68 4,097.58 4,302.35 4,514.95
 Annually 44,683.98 46,832.18 49,171.00 51,628.25 54,179.39
       
Maintenance Worker 
Trainee      
 Hourly 18.56 19.50 20.45 21.49 22.56
 Bi-weekly 1,484.82 1,559.84 1,636.27 1,719.25 1,804.65
 Monthly 3,217.12 3,379.65 3,545.24 3,725.05 3,910.08
 Annually 38,605.41 40,555.84 42,542.93 44,700.59 46,920.99
       
Maintenance Worker I      
 Hourly 20.42 21.45 22.52 23.64 24.83
 Bi-weekly 1,633.85 1,715.84 1,801.24 1,891.19 1,986.62
 Monthly 3,540.02 3,717.65 3,902.68 4,097.58 4,304.35
 Annually 42,480.19 44,611.77 46,832.18 49,171.00 51,652.24
       
Maintenance Worker II      
 Hourly 21.45 22.52 23.64 24.82 26.06
 Bi-weekly 1,715.84 1,801.24 1,891.19 1,985.70 2,084.77
 Monthly 3,717.65 3,902.68 4,097.58 4,302.35 4,516.99
 Annually 44,611.77 46,832.18 49,171.00 51,628.25 54,203.91
       
Maintenance Worker III      
 Hourly 23.58 24.76 26.00 27.29 28.66
 Bi-weekly 1,886.64 1,981.15 2,080.21 2,183.16 2,293.14
 Monthly 4,087.71 4,292.49 4,507.12 4,730.17 4,968.47







 


23 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


 Annually 49,052.58 51,509.82 54,085.49 56,762.09 59,621.70
       


       Step 1      Step 2 
      Step 
3      Step 4 


      Step 
5 


Water System Operator      
 Hourly 23.58 24.76 26.00 27.29 28.66
 Bi-weekly 1,886.64 1,981.15 2,080.21 2,183.16 2,293.14
 Monthly 4,087.71 4,292.49 4,507.12 4,730.17 4,968.47
 Annually 49,052.58 51,509.82 54,085.49 56,762.09 59,621.70
       
Senior Water System Operator     
 Hourly 25.95 27.24 28.59 30.03 31.53
 Bi-weekly 2,075.66 2,179.28 2,287.45 2,402.45 2,522.01
 Monthly 4,497.26 4,721.76 4,956.14 5,205.32 5,464.36
 Annually 53,967.07 56,661.16 59,473.67 62,463.81 65,572.38
       
revised: 5/11/2015      


 
 







 


24 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


Salary Schedule FY 2016-17 (2% increase) 
Effective the first pay period starting after July 1, 2016 


       
  Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 
Account 
Clerk/Receptionist I      
 Hourly 18.93 19.87 20.86 21.91 23.00
 Bi-weekly 1,514.14 1,589.54 1,669.08 1,752.97 1,840.12
 Monthly 3,280.63 3,444.01 3,616.33 3,798.09 3,986.93
 Annually 39,367.55 41,328.15 43,395.97 45,577.10 47,843.21
       
Account 
Clerk/Receptionist II      
 Hourly 21.91 22.97 24.11 25.32 26.57
 Bi-weekly 1,752.99 1,837.26 1,929.02 2,025.42 2,125.50
 Monthly 3,798.14 3,980.73 4,179.54 4,388.40 4,605.25
 Annually 45,577.66 47,768.82 50,154.42 52,660.81 55,262.98
       
Maintenance Worker 
Trainee      
 Hourly 18.93 19.89 20.86 21.92 23.01
 Bi-weekly 1,514.52 1,591.04 1,668.99 1,753.64 1,840.75
 Monthly 3,281.46 3,447.25 3,616.15 3,799.55 3,988.28
 Annually 39,377.52 41,366.95 43,393.78 45,594.60 47,859.41
       
Maintenance Worker I      
 Hourly 20.83 21.88 22.97 24.11 25.33
 Bi-weekly 1,666.53 1,750.15 1,837.26 1,929.02 2,026.36
 Monthly 3,610.82 3,792.00 3,980.73 4,179.54 4,390.44
 Annually 43,329.79 45,504.01 47,768.82 50,154.42 52,685.28
       
Maintenance Worker II      
 Hourly 21.88 22.97 24.11 25.32 26.58
 Bi-weekly 1,750.15 1,837.26 1,929.02 2,025.42 2,126.46
 Monthly 3,792.00 3,980.73 4,179.54 4,388.40 4,607.33
 Annually 45,504.01 47,768.82 50,154.42 52,660.81 55,287.99
       
Maintenance Worker III      
 Hourly 24.05 25.26 26.52 27.84 29.24
 Bi-weekly 1,924.37 2,020.77 2,121.82 2,226.82 2,339.01
 Monthly 4,169.47 4,378.34 4,597.27 4,824.78 5,067.84
 Annually 50,033.63 52,540.02 55,167.20 57,897.33 60,814.13







 


25 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


       
Water System Operator      
 Hourly 24.05 25.26 26.52 27.84 29.24
 Bi-weekly 1,924.37 2,020.77 2,121.82 2,226.82 2,339.01
 Monthly 4,169.47 4,378.34 4,597.27 4,824.78 5,067.84
 Annually 50,033.63 52,540.02 55,167.20 57,897.33 60,814.13
       
Senior Water System Operator     
 Hourly 26.46 27.79 29.16 30.63 32.16
 Bi-weekly 2,117.17 2,222.86 2,333.20 2,450.50 2,572.45
 Monthly 4,587.20 4,816.20 5,055.26 5,309.42 5,573.65
 Annually 55,046.41 57,794.38 60,663.14 63,713.09 66,883.83
       
revised: 5/11/2015      


 







 


26 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


Salary Schedule FY 2017-18 (2% increase) 
Effective the first pay period starting after July 1, 2017 


       
        Step 1       Step 2      Step 3      Step 4      Step 5 
Account 
Clerk/Receptionist I      
 Hourly 19.31 20.27 21.28 22.35 23.46
 Bi-weekly 1,544.42 1,621.33 1,702.46 1,788.02 1,876.93
 Monthly 3,346.24 3,512.89 3,688.66 3,874.05 4,066.67
 Annually 40,154.90 42,154.71 44,263.89 46,488.64 48,800.07
       
Account 
Clerk/Receptionist II      
 Hourly 22.35 23.43 24.59 25.82 27.10
 Bi-weekly 1,788.05 1,874.01 1,967.60 2,065.92 2,168.01
 Monthly 3,874.10 4,060.35 4,263.13 4,476.17 4,697.35
 Annually 46,489.22 48,724.20 51,157.51 53,714.03 56,368.24
       
Maintenance Worker 
Trainee      
 Hourly 19.31 20.29 21.28 22.36 23.47
 Bi-weekly 1,544.81 1,622.86 1,702.37 1,788.71 1,877.56
 Monthly 3,347.09 3,516.19 3,688.47 3,875.54 4,068.05
 Annually 40,165.07 42,194.29 44,261.66 46,506.49 48,816.60
       
Maintenance Worker I      
 Hourly 21.25 22.31 23.43 24.59 25.84
 Bi-weekly 1,699.86 1,785.16 1,874.01 1,967.60 2,066.88
 Monthly 3,683.03 3,867.84 4,060.35 4,263.13 4,478.25
 Annually 44,196.38 46,414.09 48,724.20 51,157.51 53,738.99
       
Maintenance Worker II      
 Hourly 22.31 23.43 24.59 25.82 27.11
 Bi-weekly 1,785.16 1,874.01 1,967.60 2,065.92 2,168.99
 Monthly 3,867.84 4,060.35 4,263.13 4,476.17 4,699.48
 Annually 46,414.09 48,724.20 51,157.51 53,714.03 56,393.75
       
Maintenance Worker III      
 Hourly 24.54 25.76 27.05 28.39 29.82
 Bi-weekly 1,962.86 2,061.19 2,164.25 2,271.36 2,385.79
 Monthly 4,252.86 4,465.90 4,689.21 4,921.27 5,169.20
 Annually 51,034.30 53,590.82 56,270.55 59,055.28 62,030.41







 


27 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


       
Water System Operator      
 Hourly 24.54 25.76 27.05 28.39 29.82
 Bi-weekly 1,962.86 2,061.19 2,164.25 2,271.36 2,385.79
 Monthly 4,252.86 4,465.90 4,689.21 4,921.27 5,169.20
 Annually 51,034.30 53,590.82 56,270.55 59,055.28 62,030.41
       
Senior Water System Operator     
 Hourly 26.99 28.34 29.75 31.24 32.80
 Bi-weekly 2,159.51 2,267.32 2,379.86 2,499.51 2,623.90
 Monthly 4,678.95 4,912.52 5,156.37 5,415.61 5,685.13
 Annually 56,147.34 58,950.27 61,876.41 64,987.35 68,221.50


 
revised: 5/11/2015      







 


28 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


Salary Schedule FY 2018-19 (2% increase) 
Effective the first pay period starting after July 1, 2018 


       
        Step 1       Step 2      Step 3      Step 4      Step 5 
Account 
Clerk/Receptionist I      
 Hourly 19.69 20.67 21.71 22.80 23.93
 Bi-weekly 1,575.31 1,653.76 1,736.51 1,823.79 1,914.46
 Monthly 3,413.17 3,583.15 3,762.43 3,951.53 4,148.01
 Annually 40,958.00 42,997.80 45,149.17 47,418.41 49,776.07
       
Account 
Clerk/Receptionist II      
 Hourly 22.80 23.89 25.09 26.34 27.64
 Bi-weekly 1,823.81 1,911.49 2,006.95 2,107.24 2,211.37
 Monthly 3,951.58 4,141.56 4,348.39 4,565.69 4,791.30
 Annually 47,419.00 49,698.68 52,180.66 54,788.31 57,495.61
       
Maintenance Worker 
Trainee      
 Hourly 19.70 20.69 21.71 22.81 23.94
 Bi-weekly 1,575.71 1,655.31 1,736.42 1,824.49 1,915.11
 Monthly 3,414.03 3,586.51 3,762.24 3,953.05 4,149.41
 Annually 40,968.37 43,038.18 45,146.89 47,436.62 49,792.93
       
Maintenance Worker I      
 Hourly 21.67 22.76 23.89 25.09 26.35
 Bi-weekly 1,733.86 1,820.86 1,911.49 2,006.95 2,108.22
 Monthly 3,756.69 3,945.20 4,141.56 4,348.39 4,567.81
 Annually 45,080.31 47,342.37 49,698.68 52,180.66 54,813.77
       
Maintenance Worker II      
 Hourly 22.76 23.89 25.09 26.34 27.65
 Bi-weekly 1,820.86 1,911.49 2,006.95 2,107.24 2,212.37
 Monthly 3,945.20 4,141.56 4,348.39 4,565.69 4,793.47
 Annually 47,342.37 49,698.68 52,180.66 54,788.31 57,521.63
       
Maintenance Worker III      
 Hourly 25.03 26.28 27.59 28.96 30.42
 Bi-weekly 2,002.11 2,102.41 2,207.54 2,316.78 2,433.50
 Monthly 4,337.92 4,555.22 4,783.00 5,019.70 5,272.59
 Annually 52,054.99 54,662.64 57,395.96 60,236.38 63,271.02







 


29 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


       
Water System Operator      
 Hourly 25.03 26.28 27.59 28.96 30.42
 Bi-weekly 2,002.11 2,102.41 2,207.54 2,316.78 2,433.50
 Monthly 4,337.92 4,555.22 4,783.00 5,019.70 5,272.59
 Annually 52,054.99 54,662.64 57,395.96 60,236.38 63,271.02
       
Senior Water System Operator     
 Hourly 27.53 28.91 30.34 31.87 33.45
 Bi-weekly 2,202.70 2,312.66 2,427.46 2,549.50 2,676.38
 Monthly 4,772.52 5,010.77 5,259.49 5,523.92 5,798.83
 Annually 57,270.29 60,129.28 63,113.94 66,287.10 69,585.93


 
 


revised: 5/11/2015      







 


30 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


Salary Schedule FY 2019-20 (2% increase) 
Effective the first pay period starting after July 1, 2019 


       
        Step 1       Step 2      Step 3      Step 4      Step 5 
Account Clerk/Receptionist I     
 Hourly 20.09 21.09 22.14 23.25 24.41
 Bi-weekly 1,606.81 1,686.84 1,771.24 1,860.26 1,952.75
 Monthly 3,481.43 3,654.81 3,837.68 4,030.57 4,230.97
 Annually 41,777.16 43,857.76 46,052.15 48,366.78 50,771.59
       
Account Clerk/Receptionist II     
 Hourly 23.25 24.37 25.59 26.87 28.19
 Bi-weekly 1,860.28 1,949.72 2,047.09 2,149.39 2,255.60
 Monthly 4,030.62 4,224.39 4,435.36 4,657.01 4,887.13
 Annually 48,367.38 50,692.65 53,224.27 55,884.07 58,645.52
       
Maintenance Worker Trainee     
 Hourly 20.09 21.11 22.14 23.26 24.42
 Bi-weekly 1,607.22 1,688.42 1,771.15 1,860.98 1,953.42
 Monthly 3,482.31 3,658.25 3,837.49 4,032.11 4,232.40
 Annually 41,787.74 43,898.94 46,049.83 48,385.35 50,788.79
       
Maintenance Worker I      
 Hourly 22.11 23.22 24.37 25.59 26.88
 Bi-weekly 1,768.54 1,857.28 1,949.72 2,047.09 2,150.39
 Monthly 3,831.83 4,024.10 4,224.39 4,435.36 4,659.17
 Annually 45,981.92 48,289.22 50,692.65 53,224.27 55,910.04
       
Maintenance Worker II      
 Hourly 23.22 24.37 25.59 26.87 28.21
 Bi-weekly 1,857.28 1,949.72 2,047.09 2,149.39 2,256.62
 Monthly 4,024.10 4,224.39 4,435.36 4,657.01 4,889.34
 Annually 48,289.22 50,692.65 53,224.27 55,884.07 58,672.06
       
Maintenance Worker 
III      
 Hourly 25.53 26.81 28.15 29.54 31.03
 Bi-weekly 2,042.16 2,144.46 2,251.69 2,363.12 2,482.17
 Monthly 4,424.67 4,646.32 4,878.66 5,120.09 5,378.04
 Annually 53,096.09 55,755.89 58,543.88 61,441.11 64,536.44
       







 


31 
 


OE Local 39 MOU                                                            July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2020 


Water System Operator     
 Hourly 25.53 26.81 28.15 29.54 31.03
 Bi-weekly 2,042.16 2,144.46 2,251.69 2,363.12 2,482.17
 Monthly 4,424.67 4,646.32 4,878.66 5,120.09 5,378.04
 Annually 53,096.09 55,755.89 58,543.88 61,441.11 64,536.44
       
Senior Water System Operator     
 Hourly 28.08 29.49 30.95 32.51 34.12
 Bi-weekly 2,246.76 2,358.92 2,476.01 2,600.49 2,729.91
 Monthly 4,867.97 5,110.99 5,364.68 5,634.40 5,914.80
 Annually 58,415.69 61,331.86 64,376.21 67,612.84 70,977.65
revised: 5/11/2015      


 





		Item V-B - Approval of Union MOU

		Meeting Date : June 4, 2015 



		Item V-B.1 - RES 15-11 Approval of MOU with OE Local 39

		Item V-B.2 -  2015-2020 Union MOU






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2015 
  
SUBJECT: ACTUAL VS. BUDGETED (OPERATIONS AND CAPITAL) REPORT THRU MARCH 
31, 2015 (75%) 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
This report presents the 3rd quarter actual revenues and expenses.  This 
comprises 75% of the year by time and so we compare the revenues and 
expenses to that standard.  It should be noted that the budgeted amounts 
reflect the mid-year budget revisions that were approved in March.  
There are no line items of note in this 3Q report that were not already discussed 
and addressed by the mid-year budget revisions. 
 
Operating Budget: 
 
3Q Revenue is greater than 75% of budgeted amount (as revised by the 
mid-year budget revisions). 
 
In all, the revised budget reduced budgeted revenues by $148,894. 
 
Water Sales, the largest revenue line item, came in at $119,183 more than the 
75% schedule as revised.  (The mid-year budget revision reduced Water Sales 
budgeted amount by $155,894.)  Water Sales is now on track to meet or exceed 
revised budgeted amounts at fiscal year end. 
 
Overall revenues are $134,925 more than budgeted.  In addition to Water Sales, 
this is due to the sale of the Woods Avenue parcel in the 1Q ($16,108).   
 
3Q Expenditures are slightly higher than 75% of budgeted amount.  
 
In all, the revised budget increased budgeted expenses by $116,628. 







Actual vs, Budgeted Thru March 31, 2015 2 
June 4, 2015 


 
As of the 3Q, operating expenditures are 76% of the (revised) budgeted 
amount for the entire year.   
 
For more detail on all the budget line items, including line item mid-year budget 
revisions, please refer to the attached Actual vs. Budgeted breakdown provided 
with your packet. 
 
Capital Budget: 
 
The 3Q Capital Budget (Table 2) is typical for the 3rd Quarter - the annual (2015) 
CIP is completed, some revenues won’t come in until later in the year and 2016 
CIP design expenses have been paid, the award of contract is scheduled for the 
May meeting but construction costs won't come in until the next fiscal year. 
 
Revenue from the annual assessment, and Capital Debt Reduction Charge 
(CDRC) are  still coming in; the transfer of the CDRC hasn't happened yet.  
Interest is below budget.          
 
All debt payments have been made.  There will be no General Obligation Bond 
payment this year because of the settlement agreement with USDA.       
 
Net Capital Funding is well below budget largely because the annual 
assessment is still coming from the County, also some CDRC will come in.   
 
FUNDS AT THE COUNTY 
 
Table 3. Fund and Loan Balances show a comparison of the budgeted and 3rd 
Quarter balances.  Also attached is the County Fund Balances for the 3rd Quarter.  
Table 3 includes all the funds listed in the County Fund Balances.   
 
 
 







FY 2014-15 
Actual


2014-15 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Ordinary Income/Expense
Income


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Sales


4031.10· Base Rate 1,039,865 1,393,127 -353,262 74.64%
4031.11· Current Charges 440,221 570,000 -129,779 77.23% Mid-year budget revision:  $725,894 to $570,000 *4031.12· Capital Debt Reduction Charge 189,745 253,947 -64,202 74.72%
4031.1 · Other Water Sales Revenue 112,157 0 112,157 100.0%


Total 4031 · Water Sales 1,781,988 2,217,074 -435,086 80.38% This is a cash water sales figure.   


Total OPERATING REVENUE 1,781,988 2,217,074 -435,086 80.38%  


NON-OPERATING REVENUE


1700 · Interest 4,852 7,500 -2,648 64.7% Reflects interest earnings thru 3Q *
3600 · Construction New Services 13,562 13,000 562 104.32% Mid-year budget revision:  $5,000 to $13,000 *
3601 · Construction - Service Upgrades 1,579 1,000 579 157.89%


4032 · Rent 59,916 88,350 -28,434 67.82%   


4227 · SCWA reimbursement 2,495 2,500 -5 99.79%  


4040 · Miscellaneous Income 18,726 1,500 17,226 1,248.37%
In the 1Q, proceeds from the sale of 14335 Woods 
Ave. (to Jardine) were placed here ($16,108)


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 101,130 113,850 -12,720 88.83%


Total Income 1,883,118 2,330,924 -447,806 80.79%


Expense
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages
546,083 716,000 -169,917 76.27% Mid-year budget revision:  $697,038 to $716,000 *


5912 · Overtime 18,336 30,562 -12,226 60.0%   
5916 · On-Call Pay 24,480 33,090 -8,610 73.98%


5918 · Extra help - Contract 27,871 34,100 -6,229 81.73%  
Total Salary 616,770 813,752 -196,982 75.79%


Benefits
5500 · Flex Spending (Flex spending monies p 2,199 2,199 100.0%
5920 · Retirement 91,349 121,115 -29,766 75.42%
5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 11,999 14,067 -2,068 85.3%


5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 106,651 143,249 -36,598 74.45%   
5931 · Retiree Health 6,821 7,000 -179 97.44% In the 1Q $3,334.01 was was paid to CERBT


5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 16,939 18,000 -1,061 94.11%
In the 1Q, expenses include pymt for the FY 2013-14 
audit and FY 2014-15 payments thru the 2Q.  As of 
the 3Q, workers comp has been paid for the year. *


Total Benefits 235,959 303,431 -67,472 77.76%


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 852,729 1,117,183 -264,454 76.33%


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2014-15 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2015 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


 Page 1 of 5







FY 2014-15 
Actual


2014-15 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2014-15 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2015 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6040-I · Internet service 1,438 1,800 -362 79.89%
6040-C · Cell Phones 3,610 4,300 -690 83.95%
6040-P · Pagers & Radios 547 560 -13 97.76%
6040-T · Telephones 14,686 19,950 -5,264 73.62%


Total Communications 20,281 26,610 -6,329 76.22%


Insurances


6101 · Gen. Liability 27,632 27,000 632 102.34% (In the 1Q, paid for the year)


6102 · Auto/Equipment 4,105 5,200 -1,095 78.94%
Total Insurances 31,737 32,200 -463 98.56%


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 18,053 22,000 -3,947 82.06%
In the 1Q, $3,628 was spent on backhoe repairs. Mid-
year budget revision:  $14,000 to $22,000 for 
backhoe and dumptruck repairs *


6151 · Office Maintenance 5,545 4,050 1,495 136.92%


 


 
Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 23,598 26,050 -2,452 90.59%


Maint/Repair - Facilities
6085 · Janitorial Services 5,808 8,000 -2,192 72.6%


6100 · SCADA system 15,683 35,000 -19,317 44.81%
 Mid-year budget revision:  $5,000 to $35,000 for 
SCADA software upgrades *


6180 · Distribution System Repairs 16,288 24,000 -7,712 67.87%  


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 93,212 103,000 -9,788 90.5%


In the 1Q, unbudgeted expenses totalling over 
$14,000 were spent on a Well 5 rehab.  (Well 4 was 
budgeted for rehab this year.)  In addition, problems 
have now been identified at  Well 6.  It is likely that 
this line item will be overbudget this year.  Mid-year 
budget revision: $42,000 to $103,000


*


6143 · Generator Maintenance 2,810 3,200 -390 87.81%


 
 


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 133,801 173,200 -39,399 77.25%


Miscellaneous Expenses


6280 · Memberships 9,486 9,700 -214 97.8%  


6303 · Claims
1,939 1,500 439 129.24%


  
6593 · Governmental Fees 15,303 20,500 -5,197 74.65%


1Q expense includes water system fees, paid twice 
yearlyr, and annual LAFCO costs.  


Total Miscellaneous Expenses 26,728 31,700 -4,972 84.32%


Office Expense


6410 · Postage
13,479 16,000 -2,521 84.24%


  
6430 · Printing Expense 4,359 7,500 -3,141 58.13%   
6461 · Office Supplies 3,732 4,000 -268 93.3%  


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 893 800 93 111.57%


6890 · Computers/Software 2,732 700 2,032 390.36%


In the1Q, the computer server and SM's workstation 
wre replaced as they were both still running on XP 
Pro, no longer supported by Micrsoft.  This was an 
unbudgeted expense of $2,597.22


 


 Page 2 of 5







FY 2014-15 
Actual


2014-15 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2014-15 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2015 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6579 · Furniture 0 500 -500 0.0%
Total Office Expense 25,195 29,500 -4,305 85.41%


Operating Supplies  


6300 · Chemicals 15,584 17,000 -1,416 91.67% In the 1Q, some chemicals were purchased for the 
year.


6880 · Tools and Equipment 2,570 6,500 -3,930 39.54%  


6881 · Safety Equipment 876 1,000 -124 87.57%
Total Operating Supplies 19,029 24,500 -5,471 77.67%


Professional Services
6083 · Laundry Service 1,719 3,400 -1,681 50.56%  


6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 10,079 15,000 -4,921 67.19%  


6570 · Consultant Fees 15,065 14,966 99 100.66%
1Q expense is the annual fee for labor negotiator.  
Mid-year budget revision: $3,300 to $14,966 to reflect
higher labor negotiator costs. *


6610 · Legal 11,789 20,000 -8,211 58.95%  


6630 · Audit/Accounting 26,096 29,600 -3,504 88.16%  


Total Professional Services 64,748 82,966 -18,218 78.04%


Rents & Leases
6820 · Equipment 1,010 2,000 -990 50.5%  


6840 · Building & Warehouse 22,905 27,675 -4,770 82.76% 1Q Bldg. rent paid thru October.


Total Rents & Leases 23,915 29,675 -5,760 80.59%


Transportation & Travel
7120 · Seminars & related travel 2,409 2,800 -391 86.02%
7201 · Vehicle Gas 14,329 25,000 -10,671 57.32%
7300 · Travel Reimbursements 4,203 6,400 -2,197 65.68%


Total Transportation & Travel 20,942 34,200 -13,258 61.23%


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 820 1,500 -680 54.67%


6021.3 · T-shirts 1,314 1,500 -186 87.57% 1Q expense includes T-shirts, purchased once yearly


6021.4 · Jackets 0 240 -240 0.0%
Total Uniforms 2,134 3,240 -1,106 65.85%


Utilities


7320 · Electricity 65,331 100,000 -34,669 65.33%  


7321 · Propane 1,497 4,000 -2,503 37.44%  


Total Utilities 66,829 104,000 -37,171 64.26%


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 458,936 597,841 -138,905 76.77%


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,311,665 1,715,024 -403,359 76.48%


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 4,063 9,000 -4,937 45.15% Mid-year budget revision: $22,000 to $9,000 *
8511.2 - Leasehold Improvements 0  0 0 0.0%  


8517 · Field/office equipment 0 0 0 0.0%  


8573 · Vehicles 35,656 50,000 -14,344 71.31%  


 Page 3 of 5







FY 2014-15 
Actual


2014-15 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2014-15 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31, 2015 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 39,719 59,000 -19,281 67.32%


Total Expense 1,351,384 1,774,024 -422,641 76.18%


Net Ordinary Income 531,734 556,900 -25,166 95.48%


Other Income/Expense
Other Expense


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue
0 253,947 -253,947 0.0%


  
8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 260,000 260,000 0 100.0% Mid-year budget revision: $500,000 to $260,000 *
8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000 0 100.0%
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
300,000 553,947 -253,947 54.16%


  


 Page 4 of 5







Water Sales


Base Current CDR


Oct $120,214.89 $79,799.60 $21,865.58


Nov $105,494.33 $44,382.70 $19,278.19


Dec $119,855.42 $51,917.20 $21,799.79


TOTAL $345,564.64 $176,099.50 $62,943.56


July $105,543.52 $62,759.60
August $119,815.28 $71,367.00
Sept $105,351.55 $60,696.35


$330,710.35 $194,822.95


$676,274.99 $370,922.45







1  Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District


FY 2014-15 Capital Program Budget Variances as of March 31, 2015 (75%)


FY 14-15
ACTUAL 


(3Q)
FY 14-15
BUDGET


$ Over 
Budget for 


Year
% of 


Budget Comments


REVENUE


Annual Assessment - New Services 42,154 27,000 15,154 156.1%


Annual Assessment (County) 401,281 710,000 -308,719 56.5% More will be coming in


Prior Year Assessment 29,972 40,000 -10,028 74.9%


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 0 253,947 -253,947 0.0% Transfer will happen


Interest 9,155 25,000 -15,845 36.6%


Transfers to CIRF from Operations 260,000 260,000 0 100.0%


25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


 695,000
Cost of CIP above revenue (could be deficit in 
Surplus/Deficit below). 


TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE 767,562 2,035,947 -1,268,385 37.7%


EXPENSES   


Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 0 0 0
No payment this year because of bond 
reissuance


Cap One Revenue Bond 566,508 566,508 0 NA both payments made


Total Bond Payments 566,508 566,508 0 100.0%


State Loan Payments 170,172 170,300 -128 99.9% both payments made


Private Placement Loan 234,013 234,014 -1 100.0% both payments made


Total Debt Payments 970,693 970,822 -129 100.0% Sum of all debt payments


2014 CIP 1,234 0 1,234


2015 CIP 894,280 1,037,346 -143,066 86.2% Project is completed


2016 CIP 34,694 975,000 -940,307 3.6% Award of contract at May meeting


In-House Construction Projects 9,076 25,000 -15,924 36.3%


Mapping Project 14,811 0 14,811


TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 1,924,788 3,008,168 -1,083,380 64.0%


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 1,157,226  -972,221 2,129,447 -119.0%


Net Capital Funding 43,603 348,077 -304,474 12.5%


=Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + 
Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments (FY15 
only); need assessment payment from 
County


Funds from Reserves


Transfers to In-House Constr. from 
Operations







FY 14-15


Actual3Q


Operating Budget Cash Reserve 239,887 257,254 (17,367.10)   
corresponds to 
Operations (0100)


Operating Reserve (25% of Operating Exp) 428,756 428,756 -               
corresponds to 
Operating Reserve 0300)


Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt pmt) 260,829 242,706 18,123.25    


Included in Capital and 
Debt Policy Reserve 
1100)


Capital Reserve 250,000 250,000 -               


Included in Capital and 
Debt Policy Reserve 
(1100)


Total District Policy 1,179,472 1,178,716 756            
TOTAL Reserves 2,931,657 2,594,683 336,974     


Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,752,185 1,415,968 336,217


Difference between Total 
and Policy Reserves


DISTRICT FUNDS
CIRF (7106-0600) 416,403         97,033       319,370
OPERATIONS (0100) 498,218      257,254     240,964
OPERATING RESERVE (0300) 399,812         428,756     -28,944
CAPITAL AND DEBT POLICY RESERVE 
(1100) 510,829      492,706     18,123
IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION (0500) 132,702         118,106     14,596
BUILDING (0200) 165,850      165,850     0
CAP ONE BOND AND CITIZENS BANK 
LOAN (1200) 804,505      800,522     3,983
FEDERAL LOANS AND BONDS (0400) -                64,284       -64,284
STATE LOANS (0700, 0900) 3,338              170,172 -166,834


STATE LOANS RESERVES (0800,1000)
171,370         


171,370     0


Restricted to last payment for 
State Loans; not included in 
Total Reserves


2,931,657   2,594,683  336,974


DISTRICT RESERVES AND FUND BALANCES (3Q)
District Policy Reserves


Total Funds Available 


Table 3.  FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (3Q)
14-15 Budget 


(Revised)
Difference 


Actual-FY15 Comments







SERVES AND FUND BALANCES (EOY)


STRICT RESERVES  


239,887             


399,812             


260,829             


Capital Reserve 250,000             


otal District Policy 1,150,528           


OTAL Reserves EOY 2,888,057           


Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,737,530           


ACCRUAL TOTAL Reserves EOY 3,763,057           


Accrual Reserves Above (below) Policy 2,612,530           


STRICT FUNDS
CIRF (776401, new 76757) 1,144,195           


OPERATING RESERVE (776039 405,942             


OPERATIONS (776013) 244,790             


118,106             


BUILDING (776021) 165,850             


LOANS AND BONDS (776203) 639,003          


STATE LOANS (776500&776609) 170,172          


171,370        


STATE LOANS RESERVES 
(776518&776617)


Operating Budget Cash Reserve (15% of 
Operating Expenses
Operating Reserve (25% of Operating 
Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt pmt)


IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION (776211)







 


Table 4.  County Balances FY 2014-15
 


$15,296.65 $323,402.68 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $116,778.72 $1,132,004.01 $ 24,953.19 $24,750.00 $148,556.90 $146,619.86 $511,305.56 $795,000.00 $3,854,773.92


NAME


CERBT
Operations + 


15% Cash 
Policy Reserve


Bldg Fund
Operating 


Policy 
Reserve (25%)


Federal Loan 
(GO Bonds)


In-house 
Construction


Capital 
Improvements


State Loan 
#58330


State Loan 
#58830


Final Pymt


State Loan 
58340


State Loan 
58340 


Final Pymt


Capital and Debt 
Policy Reserve


Cap One Bonds 
and Citizens 


Bank Loan Debt


Fund  76751 76752 76753 76754 76755 76756 76757 76758 76759 76760 76761 76762


Dep't  


7106


0100
7106


0200
7106


0300
7106


0400
7106


0500
7106


0600
7106


0700
7106


0800
7106


0900
7106


1000
7106


1100
7106


1200


FP1-Jul $15,296.65 $323,402.68 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $116,778.72 $1,124,193.31 $24,953.19 $24,750.00 $148,556.90 $146,619.86 $511,305.56 $677,993.40 $3,729,956.62


FP2-Aug $15,296.65 ($112,551.32) $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $116,778.72 $1,129,169.31 $24,953.19 $24,750.00 $148,556.90 $146,619.86 $511,305.56 $677,993.40 $3,298,978.62


FP3-Sept $18,172.41* $323,402.68 ($285,104.00) $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $115,770.45 $982,701.11 $13,176.22 $24,750.00 $75,247.89 $146,619.86 $511,305.56 $677,993.40 $3,066,416.17


FP4-Oct $18,349.70 $514,494.81 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $112,712.65 $816,902.52 $13,176.22 $24,750.00 $75,247.89 $146,619.86 $512,041.47 $242,039.40 $3,089,387.82


FP5-Nov $18,349.70 $564,494.81 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $111,676.16 $659,247.52 $13,176.22 $24,750.00 $75,247.89 $146,619.86 $512,041.47 $242,039.40 $2,980,696.33


FP6-Dec $18,342.92 $654,494.81 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $110,611.16 $835,553.28 $13,176.22 $24,750.00 $75,247.89 $146,619.86 $512,041.47 $242,039.40 $3,245,937.09


FP7-Jan $18,342.92 $656,089.67 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $108,942.97 $837,565.71 $13,176.22 $24,750.00 $75,247.89 $146,619.86 $512,769.21 $125,032.80 $3,131,597.33


FP8-Feb $18,342.92 $656,089.67 $150,850.00 $407,983.00 $72,570.00 $108,770.19 $759,956.53 $13,176.22 $24,750.00 $75,247.89 $146,619.86 $512,769.21 ($5,521.20) $2,923,261.37


FP9-Mar $18,791.07 $498,217.61 $165,850.00 $399,812.00 $0.00 $132,702.31 $416,403.04 $1,399.25 $24,750.00 $1,938.88 $146,619.86 $510,829.00 $804,505.30 $3,103,027.25


FP10-Apr $0.00


FP11-May $0.00


FP12-Jun $0.00


FP 13 
(FINAL)


$0.00


Beginning balances:
(Note:  Warrants requested in FP 12 for last fiscal year are not subtracted from Cash until FP 1 of the next year.  They are instead recorded as "Vendors Payable")


*FY 2014-15 CERBT Contributions: $3,334.01
Cumulative CERBT Contributions: $17,834.01


 





		Item V-C Actual v Budgeted - 3Q 2014-15

		Item V-C.1 - Budget variances as of 3-31-2015 (75%)

		Sheet1

		Water Sales breakdown



		Item V-C.2 - Capital Budget variances as of 03-31-2015 (75%)

		Table 2. FY14Q3



		Item V-C.3 - Fund and Loan Balances as of 3-31-2015 (75%)

		Table 3

		Sheet1



		Item V-C.4 - County Acctg Indices

		County Acctg Indices FY 99-00








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: June 4, 2015  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE REVIEW OF DISTRICT CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM BY THE AD HOC CIP SUBCOMMITTEE   


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on the review of the District's 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) by the ad hoc CIP Subcommittee and 
provide direction to staff. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
District staff presented the annual Capital Improvement Program review at the 
December 4, 2014 Board meeting.  Table 1 shows the approved 2014-2019 that was the 
start of the December discussion.  Several of those projects have been completed or 
were in progress and it was time to propose a revised CIP.   The Board had several 
questions about the proposed program and wanted a fuller discussion of the overall 
program.  In discussions following that meeting staff recognized that there had been no 
thorough review of the District's CIP for some time - at least prior to the arrival of the 
current General Manager - and it would be appropriate to do a thorough review with an 
ad hoc subcommittee of the Board.   At the February meeting, Tim Lipinski and Victoria 
Wikle were appointed to the subcommittee and the review started shortly after with 
periodic meetings with District staff, General Manager Steve Mack and Field Manager 
Kevin Gilman.   
 
The first item the Subcommittee addressed was establishing the selection criteria.  After 
much discussion and some revision, the Subcomittee agreed to the wording in Exhibit A 
and listed without the explanation below: 
 


 Improved water quality  
 Water losses  
 Potential Liability    


 Age of Pipe 
 Pipe Material 
 Terrain  
 Difficulty of Repair/Maintenance  


 Storage and pressure zone requirements  
 Costs per service  


 







2014-2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 2  
June 4, 2015 


 


It is important to note that there is no 'formula' for using the ranking criteria to establish 
the listing of the projects.  The criteria are listed in relative importance but there are no 
numerical values given to the criteria.  It is also important to note that costs per service 
is more informational than the other criteria: it's important information but cannot be a 
deciding factor in project ranking. 
 
Going with this information, staff compiled a list of capital projects proposed in various 
historical documents and then edited that list to uncompleted proposed projects and 
other possible projects that have come to the  attention of District staff.  That list with 
annotations relative to the ranking criteria is shown in Table 2.  These projects are not 
listed in any priority; they are just an accumulation of uncompleted historical projects 
with whatever project information that is available, and with the ranking criteria applied.   
 
A  review of the historical information shows that the District has been diligent in 
carrying out recommended projects.  Most of the projects suggested and analyzed by 
consulting engineering expertise have been completed.  There are still many projects on 
the list and more are being added 
 
Table 3 shows the proposed 2016-2023 CIP developed after consideration of the review 
of the ad hoc CIP Subcommittee.  This proposed CIP has taken into consideration the 
ranking criteria and included a through discussion of the historical CIP and all the 
projects.  The review of the historical capital projects and how they fit into approved 
CIP's showed that experience in the field changed the timing of completing these 
projects.  Many projects have been moved around based on current experience - higher 
leak numbers - Hidden Valley Road and Lovers Lane are good examples of that.   
 
Another experience issue is catastrophic failure - the failure of Mill Street with cast iron 
water main has highlighted that issue with District water mains.   The finding of two 
leaks associated with the water main along River Road near Rio Nido, the pipe material 
of that main - cast iron - the condition of the pipe material when it was excavated for 
repair, and the fact that it's the only supply line into Rio Nido have moved this project to 
the top of the list.   
 
Something different with this proposed CIP is a relatively small capital project in FY 
2018, replacement of the green sand filter at the Monte Rio treatment plant.  In earlier 
iterations we were proposing no capital program in 2018 because a full CIP - in the $1 
million range - would go into District Policy Reserves and we haven't wanted to do that if 
not necessary.  The green sand filter replacement is a needed project, we have 
contemplated replacing it for some time - at the time of its last rehabilitation in 2010 we 
discussed that the next rehabilitation would be needed in about eight years and would 
need to be a major effort or a replacement with a similar process as used at the 
Highland treatment plant.  We are recommending replacing it with ATEC technology 
because we have had good experience with it at Highland and because the green sand 
filter technology requires use of potassium permanganate which is a hazardous material 
and requires very careful operation to achieve the needed results.   This capital project is 
not related to any of the main replacement projects; thus no real economy of scale 
exists with other capital projects, and because considerable staff time will be needed to 
oversee this project, we agreed this would be a good 'off-year' project.   
 
 







2014-2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 3  
June 4, 2015 


 


Table 4 shows the financial model analysis of the proposed CIP.  It includes 3% 
increases in every year and a drop in the Capital Debt Reduction Charge in 2013 
because debt payments are lower - the State loans are paid off then.  Reserves 
above District policy are negative in 2023, but not by much and there are so many 
assumptions going into these calculations (CDRC dropping by $170,000 is one), that 
there should be no alarm about that negative amount.  The analysis shows that we 
need to skip FY 21 to avoid going into policy reserves, and includes the small CIP in 
2018.      
 
The most important recommendation in the proposed CIP is moving forward with the 
River Road water main replacement in FY 2017.  This is a project that has had 
demonstrated leaks, is cast iron with a probable installation date of the 1920'2-
1930's.  It could catastrophically fail which would cut off water supply to Rio Nido as 
well as the 70 customers directly connected to this main.   
 
The other projects in the CIP are our current recommendation based on the 
information we have today.  We will continue with an annual review of the CIP to 
confirm the current Program or make other recommendations as current experience 
dictates.  







2014-2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 4  
June 4, 2015 


 


 


   Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Approved 2014-2019 CIP Projects by Year
 


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost 
Cost per 
service Comments 


2014    


 


Hidden Valley Rd (GV) – Replace 3,900 lf 
of existing main and appurtenances on 
Hidden Valley Rd, 67 services. $656,000 $9,791  


Needed for flows, fire 
protection, customer 
water quality, leaks; 
need to figure out 
project 


 


Guernewood Lane (GV) - – Replace 1,800 
lf of existing main and appurtenances and 
abandon 200 lf of redundant 4 – inch main 
along Hwy 116, 20 services. $318,000 $15,900  


Has been pushed down 
from past priority lists; 
needed. 


  2014 Total $974,000  
 Completed cost was 
$1,056,658 


2015       


 


Old Monte Rio Road (GV) – Replace 
5,800 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances commencing at the Handy 
Andy Booster and proceeding westerly, 50 
services. $936,000 $18,720  


Needed for flows, fire 
protection, customer 
water quality, leaks  


 2015 Total $936,000  
Contract cost plus CM 
is $1,122,197 


2016       


  


Canyon 1 (Rio Nido)  Replace 
approximately 3,900 ft of existing mainline 
and 75 services along Canyon 1 Rd., 
Memory Ln., Memory Park Rd. $890,000 $13,284  


needed project; moved 
this up. 


  2016 Total $890,000    


2017       


  


Park Ave. (GV) replace approximately 
2900 lf of main line on Park Ave. and 
McLane, 37 services.  Loop two deadend 
lines. $688,000 $18,595  


pushed down, but 
needed 


  
Cherry St. (GV) replace approximately 440 
lf of main line, 13 services.   $126,000 $9,692  do with Park Ave. 


  2017 Total $814,000    


2018 No  Capital Project   


2019       


  


Wright Drive main pressure zone. – (GV) 
Replace approximately 1,120 ft of existing 
mainline and 18 associated services along 
Wright Dr. and Wright Ln.   $275,000 $15,278    


  


Woodland Drive – mainline replacement. 
(GV) Replace approximately 1,900 ft of 
existing mainline and 27 associated 
services along Woodland Dr in the main 
pressure zone.   $400,000 $14,815    







2014-2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 5  
June 4, 2015 


 


  
Monte Rio Treatment Plant Green Sand 
Filter Replacement $130,000 NA 


Investigation/analysis 
needed on replacing 
this 


  5th Year (2019?) Total $805,000    


        


  Priority List (5 Years) Total $4,419,000    


        


  Other Projects     


  


Schoeneman pressure zone- main line 
replacement. (GV)    Replace 
approximately 3,000 ft of existing mainline 
and 47 associated services along 
Highland Way, Sunset Ave, Woodland Dr, 
Laurel Way and Morningside Drive. 
(requires completion of Schoeneman 
Tank) $744,300 $15,836    


  
Highway 116 (MR) Replace approximately 
850 ft of main line.  $280,000   Do with Main Street 


  
Main St   (MR) Replace approximately 800 
ft of mainline along Main St. $180,000    


  


Upper Summit Tank - Construct a storage 
tank with a nominal capacity of 
approximately 120,000 gallons at the 
District–owned site on McLane Avenue. 
Project to include relocation/ construction 
of the existing hydro-pneumatic pump 
station. $490,000  


Do we wait on 
development for these 
tanks?  Does new 
development 
contribute? 


  


Natoma Tank – Replace the existing 
10,000 gallon storage tank with a 30,000 
storage tank.   2005 cost estimate $190,000    


  


Schoeneman Tank– Replace the existing 
10,000 gallon tank with a 30,000 gallon 
storage tank.  2005 cost estimate $127,000    


  


Wright Drive upper pressure zone. – (GV)    
Replace approximately 3,280 ft of existing 
mainline and 47 associated services along 
Wright Dr, Glenda Dr, Natoma Dr. 
(requires completion of Natoma Tank) $800,000 $17,021    


  Other Projects Total  $2,811,300    


        


  Total Projects Amount $7,230,300    
 







2014-2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 6  
June 4, 2015 


 
 


 


Table 2. Potential CIP Projects


Prioritization Criteria


Improved water quality +
Water losses  -
Potential Liability  !
Storage and pressure zone requirements    #
Costs per service  $


Projects Estimated Cost $ +  -  !   #
Park Ave. (GV) replace approximately 2900 lf of main line on Park Ave. and 
McLane, 37 services.  Loop two deadend lines. $688,000 18,595$     +  -  !   #
Cherry St. (GV) replace approximately 440 lf of main line, 13 services.  $126,000 9,692$        +  -  !    #


Wright Drive main pressure zone. – (GV) Replace approximately 1,120 ft of 
existing mainline and 18 associated services along Wright Dr. and Wright Ln.  $275,000 15,278$      +  -  !    #


Woodland Drive – mainline replacement. (GV) Replace approximately 1,900 ft 
of existing mainline and 27 associated services along Woodland Dr in the 
main pressure zone.  (requires completion of Schoeneman Tank) $400,000 14,815$     +  -  !
Monte Rio Treatment Plant Green Sand Filter Replacement $130,000 +  !
Schoeneman pressure zone- main line replacement. (GV)    Replace 
approximately 3,000 ft of existing mainline and 47 associated services along 
Highland Way, Sunset Ave, Woodland Dr, Laurel Way and Morningside 
Drive. (requires completion of Schoeneman Tank) $744,300 15,836$      +  -  !    #


Highway 116 (MR) Replace approximately 850 ft of main line. 16 services $280,000 17,500$     +  -  !   #
Main St   (MR) Replace approximately 800 ft of mainline along Main St. $180,000 NA +  -  !


Upper Summit Tank - Construct a storage tank with a nominal capacity of 
approximately 120,000 gallons at the District–owned site on McLane Avenue. 
Project to include relocation/ construction of the existing hydro-pneumatic 
pump station. 25 services, also provides service to lower zone. $490,000 19,600$      +  !    #
Natoma Tank – Replace the existing 10,000 gallon storage tank with a 30,000 
storage tank.  Done with Upper Wright, 2005 cost estimate


$190,000 
4,043$        +  !    #


Schoeneman Tank– Replace the existing 10,000 gallon tank with a 30,000 
gallon storage tank.  Done with Schoeneman, 2005 cost estimate


$127,000 


$2,702  +  !    #
Wright Drive upper pressure zone. – (GV)    Replace approximately 3,280 ft 
of existing mainline and 47 associated services along Wright Dr, Glenda Dr, 
Natoma Dr. (requires completion of Natoma Tank) $800,000 $17,021 +  -  !   #
Old River Road - Replace approximately 3,500 ft of existing main and 70 
services on Old River Rd at Morningside east to the eastern section of 
Foothill Drive.  Include Orchard Rd and Foothill Drive and River Rd on river 
side of the road. Feeds Rio Nido 1,000,000$              14,286$     +  -  !!   #


Total Cost 4,616,300$              


Additional Historical Projects


Sweetwater (Tank to Road) In-house  $             560,000  +  -  !    #
Bohemian Hwy - This is Main Street beyond school to Tyrone Rd  $             480,000 +  -  !   #
Solar Ridge - 2 inch galvanized  $             125,000 +  -  !   #
Palo Alto Drive - 6 inch AC pipe, currently not causing problems  $             241,000  +  -  !    #
Canyon 4 Tank Feed - more complicated than original conceptual project, do 
with zone  $               75,000  +  -  !    #
Duncan Road to Santa Rosa Avenue - connects Summit Tank with Crespo 
Tanks  $             510,000  +  -  !    #
Duncan Road to Santal Clara  - Leppo Tank feed  $             141,000 +  -  !   #
Highland Booster Station, goes with Schoeneman Tank $70,000 +  !   #
Edgehill Booster Station - goes with Natoma Tank $70,000 +  !    #


Additional Projects Total Cost  $          2,272,000 


Possible Additional Projects - Cost Information Not Available


Fern Road


Canyon 4 Zone


Greentree Rd


 







2014-2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 7  
June 4, 2015 


 


 


Table 3.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Proposed 2016-
2023 CIP Projects by Year     


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost Cost/Service  Comments 
         


2016        


  


Canyon 1 (Rio Nido)  Replace 
approximately 3,900 ft of existing mainline 
and 75 services along Canyon 1 Rd., 
Memory Ln., Memory Park Rd. $890,000 $11,867  


Contract Awarded for 
$915,433, Design, 
CMI $175,000 


  2016 Total $890,000     


2017        


  


Replace approximately 3,500 ft of existing 
main and 70 services on Old River Rd at 
Morningside east to the eastern section of 
Foothill Drive.  Include Orchard Rd and 
Foothill Drive and River Rd on river side of 
the road. Feeds Rio Nido. $985,000 $14,071  


Cost is rough 
estimate, will be 
refined during 
design 


  2017 Total $985,000     


2018        


  


Monte Rio Treatment Plant Green Sand 
Filter Replacement. Serves Monte Rio 
system (1100 services) $200,000 NA   


  2018 Total $200,000     


2019        


  


Park Ave. (GV) replace approximately 2900 
lf of main line on Park Ave. and McLane, 37 
services.  Loop two deadend lines. $688,000 $18,595    


  
Cherry St. (GV) replace approximately 440 
lf of main line, 13 services.   $126,000 $9,692    


  2019 Total $814,000 $16,280    


2020        


  


Wright Drive main pressure zone. – (GV) 
Replace approximately 1,120 ft of existing 
mainline and 18 associated services along 
Wright Dr. and Wright Ln.   $275,000 $15,278    


  


Woodland Drive – mainline replacement. 
(GV) Replace approximately 1,900 ft of 
existing mainline and 27 associated 
services along Woodland Dr in the main 
pressure zone.   $400,000 $14,815    


  2020 Total $675,000 $15,000    


2021 Skip Capital Project      







2014-2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 8  
June 4, 2015 


 


2022        


  


Schoeneman pressure zone- main line 
replacement. (GV)    Replace approximately 
3,000 ft of existing mainline and 47 
associated services along Highland Way, 
Sunset Ave, Woodland Dr, Laurel Way and 
Morningside Drive.  (requires completion of 
Schoeneman Tank and includes 
Shoeneman Booster) $814,300 $17,326    


  


Schoeneman Tank– Replace the existing 
10,000 gallon tank with a 30,000 gallon 
storage tank.  2005 cost estimate $127,000     


  2021 Total $941,300 $20,028    


2023        


  


Wright Drive upper pressure zone. – (GV)    
Replace approximately 3,280 ft of existing 
mainline and 47 associated services along 
Wright Dr, Glenda Dr, Natoma Dr. (requires 
completion of Natoma Tank and includes 
Edgehill Booster) $870,000 $18,511    


  


Natoma Tank – Replace the existing 10,000 
gallon storage tank with a 30,000 storage 
tank.   2005 cost estimate 


$190,000 


    


  2023 Total $1,060,000 $22,553    


  Total Cost of 2017-2023 Projects $4,675,300     


         


  Other Projects      


  
Highway 116 (MR) Replace approximately 
850 ft of main line.  $280,000     


  
Main St   (MR) Replace approximately 800 
ft of mainline along Main St. $180,000     


  


Upper Summit Tank - Construct a storage 
tank with a nominal capacity of 
approximately 120,000 gallons at the 
District–owned site on McLane Avenue. 
Project to include relocation/ construction of 
the existing hydro-pneumatic pump station. $490,000   


wait for Dubrava 
Development? 


  
Total Approximate Cost of Future, 
Unapproved Projects $950,000     







3% Sales Flat


FY14 Actual FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23


1 REVENUE
2 OPERATING REVENUE Reduced WS Flat 10%IncreaseFlat
3 Water Bill Revenue


4 Capital Debt Reduction Charge 246,360 253,751 261,364 269,205 277,281 285,599 294,167 302,992 312,082 234,300          


Base Rate 35966 1,351,512 1,392,058 1,433,819 1,476,834 1,521,139 1,566,773 1,613,776 1,662,190 1,712,055 1,763,417


Water Usage 589,167 546,157 562,542 637,360 656,481 676,175 696,461 717,354 738,875 761,041


5 Total Water Sales 1,940,679 1,938,215 1,996,361 2,114,194 2,177,620 2,242,949 2,310,237 2,379,544 2,450,930 2,524,458


6 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,223,005 2,191,966 2,257,725 2,383,399 2,454,901 2,528,548 2,604,404 2,682,536 2,763,013 2,758,758


7 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 107,484 107,071 108,911 110,788 112,702 114,655 116,647 118,679 120,751 122,865


8 Total Income 2,330,490 2,299,037 2,366,636 2,494,187 2,567,603 2,643,203 2,721,051 2,801,215 2,883,763 2,881,623


9 EXPENSES
10 763,810 778,066 801,408 825,450 890,210 916,920 944,430 972,760 1,001,940 1,032,000


11 316,700 312,785 324,479 336,764 357,497 371,100 385,286 400,082 415,516 431,616


12 SALARY & BENEFITS 1,078,736 1,090,851 1,125,886 1,162,214 1,247,707 1,288,020 1,329,716 1,372,842 1,417,456 1,463,616
13 SERVICES & SUPPLIES increase = 1%


14 SERVICES & SUPPLIES 460,192 524,794 469,442 474,136 478,878 483,666 488,503 493,388 498,322 503,305


15 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,538,928 1,615,645 1,595,328 1,636,350 1,726,585 1,771,686 1,818,219 1,866,231 1,915,778 1,966,921


16 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $791,562 $683,392 $771,308 $857,836 $841,018 $871,517 $902,832 $934,985 $967,985 $914,702


17 FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 16,747 40,000 11,000 40,000 11,000 40,000 11,000 40,000 11,000 40,000


18 Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 484,725 253,751 261,364       269,205      277,281      285,599        294,167          302,992          312,082         234,300          


19 Tfers to CIRF 537,466 340,000         470,000       470,000      470,000      460,000        510,000          510,000          560,000         550,000          


20 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 1,062,191 633,751 771,364 779,205 787,281 785,599 844,167 852,992 912,082 824,300


21 SURPLUS/DEFICIT -287,377 9,640 -11,056 38,632 42,737 45,917 47,665 41,992 44,903 50,402


22 Capital Budget
23 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
24 Net Operating Revenues** 250,089 349,640 458,944 508,632 512,737 505,917 557,665 551,992 604,903 600,402
25 Assessments 730,176 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000
26 Capital Debt Reduction Charge*** 484,725       253,751       261,364     269,205    277,281    285,599      294,167        302,992       312,082       234,300       
27 Capital Interest 16,287 30,000         10,000       10,000      10,000      10,000        10,000          10,000         10,000         10,000         
28 Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 876,614 750,000         630,000       520,000      480,000        250,000          320,000         540,000          


29 TOTAL REVENUE 2,134,237 2,160,392 2,137,308 2,084,836 1,577,018 2,058,517 1,888,832 1,641,985 2,023,985 2,161,702


30 no debt payment


31 Total Debt Payments 1,059,252      988,314         1,038,300    1,038,300   1,038,300   1,038,300     1,038,300       1,017,300       847,300         847,300          


32 CIP 2014 CIP 2015 CIP 2016 CIP 2017 CIP 2018 CIP 2019 CIP 2020 CIP 2021 CIP 2022 CIP 2023
33 Annual CIP 1,056,658 1,122,100 1,055,433 1,000,000   200,000 976,800        810,000 No Project 1,129,560      1,272,000       


34 In-House Construction Projects 18,328 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
35 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,134,237 2,150,414 2,133,733 2,078,300 1,278,300 2,055,100 1,888,300 1,057,300 2,016,860 2,159,300


36 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 0 9,978 3,575 6,536 298,718 3,417 532 584,685 7,125 2,402


37 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


38 Ending Funds ab District Policy 2,507,800    1,767,778    1,141,353  627,889      926,607      450,024        200,556          785,240          472,366         (65,233)           


39 NET CAPITAL FUNDING**** 422,026       422,078       469,008     526,536    538,718    540,217      600,532        624,685       856,685       774,402       


EXPENSES


Total Benefits


Water Rate, CDRC 
Increase =


Table 4.  OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 
SUMMARY - 3% Increase, Proposed CIP 


Total Salary


*  Starting values based on projected FY13 EOY


** =Transfer to CIRF plus net operating surplus


*** =Transfers from CDRC


**** =Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + CDRC + Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments  







Exhibit A: Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 


Capital Improvement Projects Ranking Criteria 
May 14, 2015 


 
In developing lists of needed projects, District staff have used the following criteria.  
For a project to be placed on a priority list, there are normally several of the criteria 
below that come into play (some projects will have every listed item).  Although the 
number of items within the criteria list can play a large role in the project prioritizing 
process, degree of the problem or importance, within the individual criterion, can be 
the deciding factor.   
 


 Improved water quality - excellent water quality is the top 
priority of the District - meeting State and Federal water quality 
regulations and delivering good tasting, quality water to our 
customers.  Principal approaches in doing this through capital 
projects are replacing older piping that have deposits that can 
affect water quality and by looping the system where possible - 
avoiding and eliminating "dead ends". 


 
 Water losses - number of leaks, time to repair leaks.  The District 


has unacceptable water losses - it has recently improved to 22% 
which is still much higher than industry standard and has reduced 
the annual number of leaks to 150 - still unacceptably high.  These 
leaks happen because existing pipe is older, of poor quality and/or 
condition, and, in places, poorly installed.  Replacing pipe in 
locations with high numbers of leaks has helped improve the loss 
and leak performance but much more replacement is needed.   


 
 Potential Liability - Injuries to people, and/or damage to public 


or private property due to leaking pipes, from mudslides, washed 
out roads, falling trees, and other failure modes.  These conditions 
include:    
 Age of pipe - older is not better.   
 Pipe material - cast iron is of most concern, but other older pipe 


materials also are much more likely to fail with age. 
 Terrain - steeper slopes move and that can result in pipe failures, 


especially with inappropriate pipe materials (flexibility is desired 
and flexible pipe is a more recent development). 


 Difficulty of Repair/Maintenance - some locations are difficult 
to access for repairs or difficult to repair without disturbing 
nearby residents.   


 
 Storage and pressure zone requirements - Much of the 


District's facilities were constructed as parts of smaller water 
companies with no consideration of the consolidations that 


Sweetwater Springs Water District  1 
CIP Ranking Criteria 
May 2015 







Sweetwater Springs Water District  2 
CIP Ranking Criteria 
May 2015 


eventually occurred.  To make some of these areas work according 
to current day standards and  requirements, more storage is 
needed, and better coordination of the pressure zones (also 
required because of the varying terrain) are needed. 


 
 Costs per service - the District gets "more bang for the buck" by 


concentrating on locations that benefit the most customers.  This 
not a major priority criterion but is important information. 


 
 


 
 





		Item V-D - Review of 2016-23 CIP

		Meeting Date: June 4, 2015 



		Item V-D.1 -  Ex A - CIP Ranking Criteria

		Exhibit A: Sweetwater Springs Water District

		Capital Improvement Projects Ranking Criteria








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: June 4, 2015  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in April  were 16,120 units (37.0 AF, Monte 


Rio cycle) and production was 50.1 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales were higher and 
production was lower (33.3 AF and 56.1 AF, respectively).  The water lost percentage 
decreased to 22.3, both systems appear to be going in the correct direction.   The 
reduction from April 2013, the State Board standard, was over 20%.   


 
3. Leaks:  In April we had 10 total leaks and spent 65.5 man-hours on them.   Those are the 


same number of leaks and more man-hours compared to the prior month and fewer leaks 
and similar man-hours compared to April one year ago (15 leaks, 66 man-hours).  Figure 
2 shows service and main leaks separately with a total breaks line as well.     


   
4. Guerneville Rainfall: May was typical - little rain - and our rainy season is probably over.  


This year was similar to 2013.  This will be the last rain chart for the year (barring 
something unusual) and I'll be switching to Russian River flow tracking. 


 
5.  Russian River Flow:  Contrary to newspaper reports, I believe flow in the Russian River 


will be similar to recent years.  Figure 4 shows that flow is a little higher than last year so 
far, but I expect it to get down to last year's numbers.  One thing to track - the winter was 
warmer and water temperatures appear to be warmer - this may lead to more algae this 
summer.              


 
6. 2016 CIP:   We are moving forward with Piazza Construction doing the 2016 CIP.   
   


7. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   No toilet rebates were approved in May.  The 
direct install program is available for Guerneville sewer customers and should become 
available shortly for Monte Rio customers when grant money reportedly awarded to the 
Sonoma County Water Agency is handed over.  


 
8. In-House Construction Projects:  Three in-house construction projects were reported in 


May: replaced 3/4 inch galvanized line between Santa Rosa Ave and Old Monte Rio Rd with 
2 inch poly (109.5 man-hours),  repaired 2 inch main leak on Neely Rd  (15 man-hours), 
and installed 2 5,000 gallon tanks at the Schoeneman Tank site (113.5 man-hours) .   







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
June 4, 2015 
 


 
9. Personal:  I will be on a vacation in Kenya in mid June returning to work on June 26.  I will 


be having elective surgery at the end of June (30th) and will likely need to miss the July 2 
meeting.  We don't have much on the agenda as of this writing and I think it can go forward 
without me.   


  
10. Gantt Chart:   The Gantt Chart for July has review of the District CIP - that's on the 


agenda.        


Figure 1A.  Monte Rio and Guerneville Sales and Production 12 
Month Moving Averages, SSWD Since March 2010 


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14 Mar-15


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


P
er


ce
n


t 
L


o
st


Monte Rio Sales


Guerneville Sales


Gville Prdtn


MR Prdtn


GV % Lost


MR % Lost


`







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
June 4, 2015 
 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Jan-
09


May-
09


Sep-
09


Jan-
10


May-
10


Sep-
10


Jan-
11


May-
11


Sep-
11


Jan-
12


May-
12


Sep-
12


Jan-
13


May-
13


Sep-
13


Jan-
14


May-
14


Sep-
14


Jan-
15


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


Octo
be


r


Nove
m


be
r


Dece
m


be
r


Ja
nu


ary


Feb
ru


ar
y


M
ar


ch
Apr


il
M


ay
Ju


ne Ju
ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
te


m
be


r


P
re


c
ip


it
a
ti
o


n
 (
in


)


GV 2009


Guerneville Avg


GV 2011


2013


Dryest (1977)


2014


2015


-







General Manager’s Report  Page 4 of 4 
June 4, 2015 
 


 
 
 
 


Figure 4.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2015 Compared to Earlier Years 
and the 2000-2008 Average, Updated May 26, 2015


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


800


1-A
pr


8-A
pr


15-A
pr


22-A
pr


29-A
pr


6-M
ay


13-M
ay


20-M
ay


27-M
ay


3-Ju
n


10-Ju
n


17-Ju
n


24-Ju
n


1-Ju
l


8-Ju
l


15-Ju
l


22-Ju
l


29-Ju
l


5-A
ug


12-A
ug


19-A
ug


26-A
ug


2-S
ep


9-S
ep


16-S
ep


23-S
ep


30-S
ep


F
lo


w
 (


cf
s)


2000-08 Avg


2009


2014


2015


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000


 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 
Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 FY17+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2014-15 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2016 CIP Design


        2016 CIP Award of Contract


        2016 CIP Construction Starts


        2017 CIP Design


        2017 CIP Award of Contract


        2017 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Jul-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest ??


Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal July-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: June 4, 2015 



